
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
Board  

 
 
THURSDAY, 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2008 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERSHIP: See details set out below. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS    
 
 To receive apologies for absence.  

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any items of Urgent Business. (Late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items of Urgent 
Business will be dealt with under Item 13 below).  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members of the Board must declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests with 

respect to agenda items and must not take part in any decision required with respect 
to those items.  
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 10)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2008 as a correct record.  

 
STRATEGIC FOCUS ITEMS:    
 
5. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2009-20    
 
 A presentation will be given.  

 
6. CHILD POVERTY STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN  (PAGES 11 - 40)  
 
7. CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES    
 

  

for children & young people 



 

2 

 A presentation will be made by representatives from the Haringey Teaching Primary 
Care Trust.   
 

8. ALCOHOL HARM REDUCTION STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN  (PAGES 41 - 
78)  

 
MONITORING ITEMS:    
 
9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING: LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT AND NATIONAL 

INDICATOR SET -QUARTER 1 REPORT (APRIL-JUNE 2008)  (PAGES 79 - 94)  
 
10. FORUM UPDATES    
 
 Verbal updates will be provided.  

 
BUSINESS ITEMS:    
 
11. REPORT FROM THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S ADVISORY BOARD    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
12. THREE MINUTE UPDATE    
 
 Each sector of the Partnership will be invited to give a three minute update on the 

most prevalent issues coming from the respective sectors. Longer items will need to 
be submitted as a short paper  to be tabled for noting at the meeting.   
 

13. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of Urgent Business admitted under Item 3 above.  

 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items of AOB.  

 
15. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS    
 



 

3 

 To note the items currently suggested for future meetings as listed and suggest any 
additional items. 
 

• Keys to Well Being 

• Obesity Strategy 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-20 

• Fair Play Strategy 

• Contact Point 

• Sixteen to Eighteen Transfer 

• APA Self Assessment 

• Youth Summit 

• Olympics 

• Provision of Five Hours of Culture 

• Infant Mortality 

• Teenage Pregnancy  
 
 
 

16. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 To note the following future dates: 

 

• 15 December 2008  

• 3 February 2009  

• 7 April 2009  
 

 
 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Xanthe Barker  
Principal Support Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2957 
Fax: 020 8489 2660 
Email: xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 
SECTOR 
GROUP 

AGENCY NO. 
OF 

REPS 

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

Haringey 
Council 
 

6 Councillor Liz Santry, Exec Member, Children & Young 
People (Chair) 
Councillor George Meehan, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Nilgun Canver, Exec Member, Crime and 
Community Safety 
Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive 
Councillor Dilek Dogus  
Sharon Shoesmith, Director of Children and Young 
People’s Service 
 

Haringey 
Teaching 
Primary Care 
Trust 

4 Tracey Baldwin, Chief Executive 
Sue Baker, Non-Executive Director 
Pam Constantinides, Non-Executive Director 
Helen Brown, Director, Strategy, Performance & 
Children’s Services 

North 
Middlesex 
Hospital trust 

1 Claire Panniker, Chair of Trust 

Mental Health 
Trust 

1 Jane Lithgow, Director of CAMHS 

Whittington 
Hospital Trust 

1 TBC, Chief Executive 

H
e

a
lt
h

 

Great Ormond 
Street 
Hospital 

1 Jane Elias, Partnership Director of Operations 

Community 
Link Forum 
 

3 Ify Adenuga 
Cenk Orhan 
Jim Shepley 

HAVCO 1 Melanie Danan  

Learning and 
Skills Council 
(London 
North) 
 

1 Yolande Burgess 

Middlesex 
University 

1 Christine Cocker 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 

College of 
North East 
London 

1 Paul Head, Principal 

Early Years 
and Play 

1 TBC 
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

Primary 
Schools 

1 TBC 



 

5 

Secondary 
Schools 

1 Tony Hartney, Head Teacher, Gladesmore Community 
School 

Special 
Schools 

1 Margaret Sumner, Head Teacher, William C Harvey 
School 

Haringey 
Probation 
Service 

1 Mary Pilgrim, Head of Service Delivery 

Metropolitan 
Police 

1 Commander Dave Grant, Borough Commander 

Youth 
Offending 
Service 

1 Jean Croot, Head of Community Safety, Haringey 
Council 

O
th

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

s
 

Haringey 
Youth Council 

2 Youth Councillor Shayan Mofitzedeh 
Youth Councillor Adam Jogee 

F
o

ru
m

 
C

h
a

ir
s
 

Early 
Childhood 
Forum 
Five to Eleven 
Forum 
Eleven to 
Nineteen 

1 
 

1 
 

1 

Melian Mansfield 
 
Barbara Breed 
 
Janette Karklins 

 Total  33  
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 
Present: Councillors Liz Santry (Chair) and George Meehan, Ify Adendunga, 

Elizabeth Archer, Sue Barker, Helen Brown, Dr. Pam Constantinides, 
Jean Croot, Melanie Danan, Jane Elias, Belinda Evans, Dave Grant, 
Tony Hartney, Paul Head, Cenk Orhan, Jim Shepley, Sharon 
Shoesmith, Margaret Sumner.  
 

Also Present:   Sha-Kera King, Pam Pemberton and Patricia Walker. 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTiON 
BY 

 
OBCB18.
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR (Agenda Item 5) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

 That Councillor Santry be appointed as Chair for 2008/09. 
  

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

 

OBCB19.
 

APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS (Agenda Item 1) 
 
Our Chair welcomed Commander Dave Grant, newly appointed Borough 
Commander to the meeting. 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor Nilgun Canver, 
Tracey Baldwin (for whom Helen Brown substituted), Barbara Breed (for 
whom Elizabeth Archer substituted), Yolande Burgess, Adam Jogee and 
Janette Karklins. 
 

 
 

OBCB20.
 

MINUTES (Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That, subject to the correction of ‘staring’ to ‘starting’ in the 
second line of the final paragraph of the preamble to Minute 
OBCB.06, the minutes of the meeting held on 6 May 2008 be 
approved as a correct record. 
   

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

OBCB21.
 

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR (Agenda Item 6) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

 That Sue Barker be appointed as Vice Chair for 2008/09. 
 

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

OBCB22.
 

APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE HARINGEY 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP (Agenda Item 7) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That Sharon Shoesmith be appointed as the Children and Young 
People’s Strategic Partnership Board’s representative on the 
Haringey Strategic Partnership Board for 2008/09. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

OBCB23.
 

GOVERNANCE: MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE: 
2008/09 (Agenda Item 8)  
 
We noted that the Council’s Head of Legal Services had been consulted 
on the content of the report  and had commented that the wide ranging 
strategic and responsive role for the Strategic Partnership Board, which 
was determined by statute, was referred to within the body of the terms 
of reference. While the content of the terms of reference was generally 
non-contentious, the Board might not have the power to formally 
approve Section 31 Partnership Agreements. The prescribed bodies for 
the purpose of Section 31 arrangements consisted of local authorities 
and specific NHS bodies and any arrangement had to be agreed by the 
prescribed bodies. The wider membership of the Board included 
representatives of bodies not prescribed for the purposes of Section 31 
and its associated Regulations. Thus the terms of reference could validly 
refer to a role such as oversight of Section 31 partnership agreements 
but not to formal agreement of the arrangements. However, the Board 
would have the power to formally approve specific arrangements made 
under Section 10 of the Children Act 2004, which appeared to be a 
function not currently set out within its responsibilities.  
 
With regard to the composition of the Board, reference was made to the 
need for the possible addition of representatives of the North Middlesex 
Hospital and from schools. It was also suggested that Middlesex 
University be removed from the list of organisations represented. The 
Community  Link Forum’s representation also needed to be changed in 
the light of their new protocol. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the terms of reference of the Board be amended to reflect 
the comments of the Council’s Head of Legal Services as outlined 
above. 

 
2. That the composition of the Board be reviewed to take account of 

the views expressed by existing Members.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 

 
 
 
 
DCYPS 

OBCB24.
 

COMMUNITY LINK FORUM PRESENTATION (Agenda Item 9) 
 
We received a presentation entitled ‘What is the Community Link 
Forum?’.  
 
It was noted that the stated mission of the CLF was to increase the level, 
accessibility and quality of services meeting need and community 
cohesion through greater engagement and influence.  
 
In this context we were informed that the six key reasons why the CLF 
had been introduced had been: 
 

• Demise of the Community Empowerment Networks (March 2006) 

• Improve the ‘voice’ of the Sector at a strategic level  

 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

• Accountability with transparent processes 

• Organised cross-sectoral working 

• Improved joint working 

• RESULT – Local services meeting local need 
 
The Board was advised of the CLF Structure and of the CLF Elections 
the main points of which were: 
 

• 24 seats available to the VCS across the Thematic Boards and 
Main Partnership 

• 60 nominations had been received 

• Only BPP seats were uncontested 

• Process independently managed by the Electoral Reform 
Services 

• 17 CLF representatives successfully elected 
 
The Board was also advised that the C&YP Partnership Board CLF 
representatives were as follows: 
 

• Cenk Orhan 

• Ify Adenuga 

• Jim Shepley 
 
The CLF’s Achievements included  .  
 

• Reference group established in May 2007 

• The ‘Have Your Say’ consultation conducted June-July 2007 

• HSP ratifies CLF Agreement (19 July 2007) 

• CLF secretariat set up and CLF policies developed and ratified by 
Reference Group 

• Small scale outreach programme conducted during winter 2007 

• 240 strong membership by January 2008 

• CLF launched 9 January 2008  

• LAA workshops held for the Sector with LVSC 

• Reference group supported with briefings on LAA, NRF and WNF 

• Elections successfully managed  

• Leadership Training provided for new CLF representatives  
 
The CLF’s shared priorities were cited  as being - 
 

• People at the heart of change 

• An environmentally sustainable future 

• Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

• Healthier people with a better quality of life 

• People and customer focussed 
 
In terms of Achieving Priorities the following were quoted – 
 

• Concerns about serious anti-social behaviour, and particularly 
discouraging young’s involvement in it 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

• Need for positive images for youth, rather than demonising them 

• Value and recognition of children and young people’s 
achievements  

• Need to engage with young people, and to listen to their views 
and their ‘voice’ – need effective practical action targeting those 
involved in gun and knife crime and to prevent negative re-
enforcement of such activity 

• More young leaders and involvement of all age groups.   
 
Questions having been asked and answered, our Chair thanked Sha-
Kera King (CLF) and we   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the presentation be noted.  
 

OBCB25.
 

INTEGRATED YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICES AND TARGETED 
YOUTH SUPPORT SERVICES (Agenda Item 10) 
 
We received a presentation from the Integrated Youth Support Service 
entitled ‘Youth Matters Next Steps’ the background to which was “having 
a single body responsible and accountable for youth policy and the ECM 
outcomes in each area will enable integrated planning and 
commissioning of the full range of services for teenagers from universal 
activities through to more specialist and targeted support. This would 
lead to an integrated youth support service, focused on and structured 
around young people’s needs and involving a range of providers 
including voluntary and community organisations” (DFES Youth Matters 
2005 para. 36). 
 
We noted that the 4 key elements of Integrated Youth Support were – 
 

•  Empowering young people 

•  Making a contribution 

•  Supporting choices (Information, Advice and Guidance) 

•  Reformed targeted support 
 
In terms of targeted youth support the aim was to put in place a co-
ordinated and effective response to the more complex needs of 
vulnerable teenagers by way of - 

 

• Existing partnerships 

• Multi-agency teams 

• CAF/Lead professional 

• Core competencies 
 
Seven Strands of Targeted Youth Support had been identified, viz – 
 

• Young People’s Influence 

• Early Identification 

 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

• Needs Assessment 

• Early Universal Support 

• Lead Professional Support 

• Transitions 

• Accessible Services 
  
The achievements of the Service to date were reported as being – 
 

• Common assessment framework 

• Youth Service and Connexions Haringey configured into 
universal and targeted services 

• Workforce development – integrated leadership 

• Key stakeholders contributions 

• Co-location of staff working with vulnerable children and young 
people 

• Awareness raising  
 
Future actions proposed included –  
 

• Strategy to be in place by December 2008 to incorporate why, 
what, where, when and how 

• Milestones in place to achieve target date 

• Engagement of 3rd sector 

• Consultation with and involvement of young people 

• Roll out of Extended Services 

• Monitoring and measurement of impact (PSA 14 and additional 
proxy indicators) 

 
The intention was that the Service would do more of what it did well 
including –  
 

• Embedded involvement of young people in service planning and 
delivery (Hear By Right) 

• A Youth Offer – what young people, parents and communities 
can expect 

• Joint planning, commissioning and delivery (universal and 
targeted) 

• Increase in delivery and uptake of Positive Activities (PSA 14) 

• Impact on NEET, teenage conception rate, first time entrants into 
criminal justice, substance misuse. 

 
OBCB26.
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING: ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 
ASSESSMENT (APA), CHANGING LIVES AND PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING (Agenda Item 11) 
 
We noted that the Education and Inspection Act 2006 required Ofsted to 
undertake an annual review of the Children’s Services in each local 
authority and award a performance rating and Ofsted carried out this 
duty through the Annual Performance Assessment (APA). However, 
following evaluation of the APA 2007 Ofsted had introduced some 

 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

changes to the APA process so that Councils could now either complete 
Ofsted’s APA self assessment format or submit their annual review of 
their children and young people’s plan.  
 
We were informed that since the report on the APA process to our last 
meeting partners had been working on the evaluation and analysis of the 
20 priorities in Changing Lives.  Work was continuing on this evaluation 
which would be submitted as the APA self assessment on 26 June. We 
were also informed that a programme for 2008/09 was being drawn up 
which would include the new aims for each of the existing 20 priorities.  
The development of these aims was to be based on the outcomes from 
the evaluation of Changing Lives.    
 
It was reported that because the closing date for the APA self 
assessment had been after the date for circulation of the agenda for our 
meeting it had not possible to include the finished documents with the 
report.  Following the submission of the self assessment Ofsted would 
consider whether or not they wished to make an on-site visit.  The final 
letter and grades would be published in December.  
 
It was also reported that Haringey’s proposed LAA had been submitted 
for Government approval at the end of May. The development of the new 
performance management arrangements for the LAA reported to our last 
meeting would involve quarterly reports to our Board and other theme 
boards.  These would replace the key indicator set that we had been 
receiving at each meeting over the last year.  We noted that as the first 
quarter had only ended on 30 June the report was not available but 
would be presented to our next meeting in September.  Instead, a set of 
indicators taken from the Directorate dashboard for April and May had 
been included in the Appendix to the report to enable current targets to 
be seen, and in some instances progress, on a selection of indicators 
significant for children and young people.  We noted that for  easy 
reference indicators were colour coded according to whether they were 
among the Haringey Strategic Partnership’s LAA 35 improvement 
targets, LAA local indicators or DCSF mandatory indicators.  We also 
noted that the traffic lights, where available, referred to the situation in 
May and that none were at red. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted.  
 

OBCB27.
 

FORUM UPDATE: 11-19 FORUM (Agenda Item 12) 
 
We received a verbal update from the Director of the Children and 
Young People’s Service and we noted that work was on-going on new 
diplomas and the transfer of responsibility. Success rates had been 
reviewed and much work had been carried out to address the needs of 
those young people who were leaving school with no qualifications. 
 
The evaluation of ‘Changing Lives’ had now been submitted and the next 

 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

step would be to feed in to next year’s plans. Consideration would also 
be given to the 2009-2020 Children’s Plan and the need to mirror the 
Government’s plan. In this connection it was intended to carry out 
extensive consultations starting in September 2008.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted.  
 

OBCB28.
 

REPORT FROM CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S ADVISORY 
BOARD (Agenda Item 13) 
 
We received a verbal update from the Director of the Children and 
Young People’s Service and we noted that in relation to items suggested 
for  discussion at future meetings that play had been a big issue in 
particular the Fair Play Strategy. 
 
We also noted that a copy of the Primary Strategy which looked at 
transformational change to primary education would be uploaded on to 
the Council’s web site within the next month. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted.  
 

 
 

OBCB29.
 

THREE MINUTE UPDATE (Agenda Item 14) 
 
The Board received a brief oral update from each of the partner 
agencies on activity since the previous meeting. 
 
Primary Care Trust 
 
The Board was advised that the Primary Care Strategy was the focus of 
the PCT’s work. It should be noted that the Strategy was still evolving 
and that much work would be carried out on it over the forthcoming six 
months. The relationship with the Children’s Service would be 
considered as would the question of linkages to the GP Service. The 
Darzi Review had also highlighted significant issues.  
 
Locally, the high birth rate was putting maternity and paediatric services 
under pressure. 
 
Police     
 
The current drive was around knife crime while avoiding the demonising 
of young people. Priority was also being given to  achieving the LAA 
targets. 
 
Safer Communities Unit 
 
Forthcoming events included the Peace Week planning meeting, the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

inaugural meeting of the ‘Dreams’ group on 28 July and a young people 
and alcohol initiative aimed at stopping young people becoming involved 
with alcohol at a young age. 
 
Secondary Schools  
 
The Building Schools for the Future Programme was progressing and 
works were now underway at Gladesmore School. 
 
HAVCO  
 
Information sharing events were being planned including a children and 
young people’s theme group on 2 September.  
 
Special Schools 
 
Noted that this year, for the first time, every child’s achievements had 
been recorded.  Also noted that the Council’s Sixth Form Centre had 
been able to accommodate all referrals from Special Schools.   
 
CONEL 
 
Noted that the outcome of an Inspection Report on the College had been 
outstanding and thanks were expressed to other agencies who had lent 
support. 
 
On the question of knife crime it was suggested that there might be 
value in having a discussion at a future Board meeting on this matter 
with an emphasis on adopting a positive approach. The Director of the 
Children and Young People’s Service having indicated that there had 
been a youth summit which had focussed on this issue and a number of 
important developments, we asked that a report back be made to the 
next meeting of the Board.  
 
Community Link Forum 
 
Concern was expressed about proposed increases in rents paid by 
community groups occupying Council owned premises with effect from 1 
October 2008. 
 
We noted that the matter was the subject of on-going discussions 
between HAVCO and the Council’s Voluntary Sector Team. 
 
5 to 11 Forum 
 
In response to a question about the Fair Play Strategy our Chair 
indicated that this should be the subject of a report to a future meeting of 
the Board.  
 
Leader of the Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD (HSP) 
TUESDAY, 1 JULY 2008 

 

Concern having been expressed about the risk of a major outbreak of 
measles and low MMR immunisation rates, we noted that the PCT had a 
catch up programme in place which included payments and targeted 
information on immunisation.  
 

OBCB30.
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (Agenda Item 17) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the Children and Young People’s Plan 2009/20 Consultation 
be selected for consideration at the next meeting of the Board on 
25 September 2008. 

 

 
 
 
 
DCYPS  

OBCB31.
 

ITEMS CURRENTLY SUGGESTED FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
(Agenda Item 18) 
 
Our Chair having indicated that she would prefer if the Board selected 
one item from the list suggested by sub-groups for consideration per 
meeting, it was  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the Children and Young People’s Plan 2009/20 Consultation 
be selected for consideration at the next meeting of the Board on 
25 September 2008. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 

OBCB32.
 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS (Agenda Item 18) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the following dates of meetings of the Board in 2008/09 be 
noted – 
 

• 25 September 2008 

• 15 December 2008 

• 3 February 2009  

• 7 April 2009 
 

 
 

LIZ SANTRY 
Chair 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
Meeting:  Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
 
Date:    25 September 2008 
 
Report Title:  Child Poverty Strategy & Action Plan 

 
Report of:  Sharon Shoesmith, Director The Children & Young 

People’s Service 
 
 
Summary 
 
Too many of Haringey’s children and young people are living in poverty.  The 
importance of this issue has been recognised by the Council and its partners 
adopting the National Indicator on reducing the proportion of children living in 
poverty (NI 116) as one of the thirty-five priorities for the Strategic 
Partnership’s Local Area Agreement (LAA).  
 
NI 116 is one of the National Indicators that the CYPSP leads on and the 
Child Poverty Strategy and Action Plan set out proposals for tackling this 
issue.  Consultation, particularly on the Action Plan, is taking place between 
now and 5th November.   
 

 
Recommendations 
 
That the Board note and make comment on the Child Poverty Strategy and 
Action Plan. 
 

Financial/Legal Comments 
 
The Chief Financial Officer was consulted and commented:  
 

• It is expected that costs associated with developing the Strategy will be 
contained within existing resources. 

• In practice the Strategy, which aims to move towards closer joint planning 
and working across the Council and with Partner agencies in tackling child 
poverty, should increase value for money and direct resources in a more 
efficient and effective manner. 

 
The Head of Legal Services has been consulted and there are no specific 
legal implications. The Strategy will help to facilitate the Council’s duties 
towards children in need under the Children Act 1989 and related statutory 
instruments and guidance. The Council also has the power to implement a 
broad range of measures by virtue of the well-being powers of section of s.2 
of the Local Government Act 2000.   

Agenda Item 7Page 11



2 

 
For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Zakir Chaudhry 
Title:   Corporate Policy & Strategy Manager 
Tel: 020 8489 2518 
Email address:  Zakir.Chaudhry@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 

1. Background 

1.1 The Government has set itself a target to end Child Poverty by 2020 and is 
strongly encouraging local services to take an ever more active role in 
reducing poverty. 

 
1.2 The Local Authority has an important role in helping to tackle the issue by: 
 

• delivering key services that are critical to improving children’s life 
chances;  

• co-ordinating activities to reduce worklessness and poverty;  

• engaging with individuals and groups at risk of being marginalized;  

• tailoring solutions to meet the needs of local people 
 
1.3 These roles were recently confirmed by the London Commission on Child  

Poverty (LCPC) which again stressed the important contribution that local 
services, including Council services, could make to reducing poverty.  

 
1.4 Members have also made it clear that they want to see a renewed drive by 

the council to improve the circumstances and opportunities of the Borough’s 
poorest children.  A Members’ Child Poverty Working Group was established 
last year, Chaired by the Deputy Leader, Councillor Reith.  

 
1.5 The Child Poverty Strategy identifies four objectives that the Council needs to 

meet in order to achieve a substantial reduction in Child Poverty.  These are 
adapted from already existing service priorities, although they also reflect 
objectives identified and recommendations made in the London Child Poverty 
Commission report.  

 
Objective 1: Increasing parental employment in sustainable jobs  
Objective 2: Maximising incomes through improving the delivery of 

benefits and tax credits 
Objective 3: Reducing educational attainment gaps for children   
Objective 4: Ensuring all Haringey children have decent and secure 
homes.  

 
1.6 The fundamental aim of Haringey’s Strategy and Action Plan is to ensure that 

all Council services and local partners are working together in a joined up way 
to reduce Child Poverty in the Borough and ensure that today’s children do 
not become the parents of poor children tomorrow.  

 

Page 12



3 

1.7 The Council will consult a range of partners through the Haringey Strategic 
Partnership and its Theme Boards. This will include representatives of 
community groups, HAVCO and the Citizen’s Advice Bureau.  
 

2. Current initiatives 
 
2.1 Work is already being undertaken under the four Child Poverty Strategy 
objectives.  
 
Current work strands include: 
 

• Promoting the Haringey Guarantee 

• Developing the ‘Families Into Work’ programme in Northumberland Park 

• Working with Job Centre Plus to promote take up of Working Tax and 
Child Tax credits 

• Providing income maximisation information through a range of sources 

• Initiatives to improve educational attainment gaps through Children’s 
Centres and Extended Schools 

• Delivery of the ‘Tackling Fuel Poverty’ project 

• Joint work between the Education Welfare Office and Housing Officers to 
minimise the disruption of children moving schools   

• £100k has been allocated for a new initiative to provide benefit advice 
surgeries in some primary schools. 

 
3. Strategic Implications 

 
3.1 The Child Poverty Strategy has been designed to deliver two of the 

Sustainable Community Strategy’s (SCS) objectives: 
 

• Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

• Healthier people with a better quality of life 
 
3.2 Delivery of the Strategy will be key in meeting the new LAA target on tackling 

Child Poverty, as well as current LAA targets around Worklessness and 
improving educational attainment.  

 
3.3 The Strategy is a step in moving towards closer joint planning and working 

across the council and with partner agencies in tackling Child Poverty.  
 
 

4. Financial Implications 
 

4.1 The Strategy’s objectives will be delivered within existing budgets.  It is hoped 
however, that by encouraging a more co-ordinated and focused approach to 
child poverty, the strategy will increase the effectiveness of the 

Council’s activity in this area and improve value for money.   

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 This Strategy has no legal implications for the Council. 

6. Equalities Implications  

Page 13



4 

 
6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken and found that the 

implementation of the Strategy will enable the Local Authority and its Partners 
to concentrate its efforts in providing services to the most excluded and 
deprived children and families in the Borough. 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 The Strategy and Action Plan will be sent out for consultation to the Haringey 

Strategic Partnership, its theme boards and the Youth Council. Consultation 
will begin on 25 September 2008 and finish on 5 November 2008. The results 
of the consultation will be reported to Cabinet in December 2008. 
 

7.2 Please forward all comments, particularly on the action plan, by 5th November 
to:  Zakir.Chaudhry@haringey.gov.uk 

8. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

a. Child Poverty Strategy  
b. Draft Child Poverty Action Plan 
 
 

Page 14



5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILD POVERTY STRATEGY 
 

2008-2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



6 

Contents Page 
Page 

Foreword          3 
 
Executive Summary        4 
 
Introduction          5 
 
Why we need a strategy        5 
 
Defining Child Poverty        6 
 
Child Poverty 
 
The national context        6 
London context         6 
Haringey context         7 
 
Tackling Child poverty in Haringey      9 
 
Our Child Poverty Objectives 
 

a) Increasing parental employment in sustainable jobs   9 
b) Improving take up of benefits and tax credits    11 
c) Reducing educational attainment gaps for children in poverty  12 
d) Ensuring children live in adequate housing    14 
 
 

Implementation, monitoring and evaluation     15 
 
Consultation          15 
 
Appendix A- The London Child Poverty Commission   16 
 
Appendix B – Child Poverty in Haringey     17 
 
 

Page 16



7 

Foreword 
 
Children and young people are Haringey’s future.   
 
Above all we want them to be happy, healthy and safe with a bright future.  
We have to plan for that future - to make it the best we possibly can.   
 
Every year we see young people excel against the odds given their personal 
circumstances but these are exceptions.  Too many children across the 
country and particularly in London grow up in poverty.  We have an affluent 
society but with extremes of wealth and poverty.  Haringey is no exception; it 
is a borough with high levels of deprivation which impact on children’s life 
chances.   
 
Families both in and out of work can experience poverty, depending on their 
circumstances.  We know that poverty rates are highest for workless families, 
whether lone parents or couples.  Whilst the number of children living in 
temporary housing has reduced and employment has risen, levels of 
worklessness remain high impacting on health, well-being and life chances.   
 
We have seen enormous improvements in services for children and young 
people in Haringey.  Progress in achieving five good GCSEs has been 
sustained at twice the national rate for over seven years.  Sixteen children’s 
centres are now providing good services for young children that enable many 
parents to return to work.  This, together with other central and local 
government initiatives has led to a 4% reduction in the number of children 
living in poverty in Haringey; a much faster pace than most other parts of 
London.   
 
This document draws together cross cutting work which will accelerate the 
pace at which we can lift children out of poverty in Haringey.  Our ambition, 
reflected in our new LAA target on Child Poverty, is to achieve a further 
reduction of 4.5% by 2011.   
 
Realising this ambition will draw upon the work of many departments across 
the council and all of the council’s partners represented on the Haringey 
Strategic Partnership.   
 
We want everyone in Haringey to get behind reducing poverty.  We all have a 
role to play in delivering a better future for children and young people in the 
borough. 
 
Together, we can do it.  
 
 
Cllr Santry        Cllr Reith 
Cabinet Member        Cabinet Member 
Children and Young People  
 

Page 17



8 

Executive Summary 

There are a number of reasons for developing this strategy.  Haringey, like 
London as a whole, has stubbornly high rates of child poverty with 36% of 
children in the borough growing up in families struggling to meet the basic 
necessities of life.  At the same time, a number of recent reports and policy 
statements have stressed the important role that local services, especially 
local government services, can make to helping families out of poverty.  
Finally, Haringey’s Councillors themselves want to see a renewed drive to 
reduce child poverty.     

The fundamental aim of the strategy is to ensure that all council services and 
local partners are working in a joined up way to do everything possible to 
reduce child poverty in the borough and ensure that today’s children don’t 
become the parents of poor children tomorrow.  It builds on a number of 
existing strategies, including the Regeneration Strategy and the Children and 
Young People’s Plan.  

The strategy identifies four objectives that the council needs to meet in order 
to achieve a substantial reduction in child poverty.  These are adapted from 
already existing service priorities, although they also reflect objectives 
identified and recommendations made in the London Child Poverty 
Commission report.  
 

Objective 1: Increasing parental employment in sustainable jobs  
Objective 2: Improving take up of benefits and tax credits 
Objective 3: Reducing educational attainment gaps for children in poverty  
Objective 4: Ensuring all Haringey children have decent and secure  
        homes.  

 
This document will be supported by an action plan laying out how the council 
will deliver on each of these objectives. 

Page 18



9 

Introduction 
 
1 Despite being one of the richest cities in the world, 40% of children in 
London grow up in poverty.  Haringey, the 5th most deprived borough in the 
capital1, is certainly no exception to this broad London pattern.  Too many of 
our children are living in inadequate housing, with parents unable to afford the 
basic necessities of life.   

2 There is, however, nothing inevitable about this.  The government has 
already succeeded in bringing down child poverty.  Over the last decade some 
600,000 children have been lifted out of poverty since 1997.  Many examples 
of local agencies and local initiatives – including many Haringey initiatives - 
have helped families out of poverty.  In fact, between 2004-2007, the number 
of children living in poverty in the borough fell by 4%.  

Why we need a strategy 

3 A number of factors have prompted us to write this strategy.  

� Child poverty has fallen over the last decade but the rate at which 
poverty is falling has begun to decline.  The government is likely to 
miss its national target of reducing child poverty by half by 2010 – with 
nearly 2.7 million children projected to still be living in poverty.  Against 
this background, the Government is strongly encouraging local services 
to take an ever more active role in reducing poverty.   

 
� The London Commission on Child Poverty stressed the important 

contribution that local services could make to reducing poverty.  
 

� Haringey’s councillors want to see a renewed drive by the council to 
improve the circumstances and opportunities of the borough’s poorest 
children.     

4 The fundamental aim of the strategy is to ensure that: 

all council services and local partners are working in a joined up way to do 
everything possible to reduce child poverty in the borough and ensure that 
today’s children don’t become the parents of poor children tomorrow. 

5 The strategy builds on a number of existing council and HSP 
strategies, including the Income Maximisation Strategy, the Regeneration 
Strategy, the Well-being Strategic Framework and the Children and Young 
People’s strategic plan, Changing Lives.   

6 This strategy recognises that in attempting to address this issue there 
are certain actions that can only be initiated by central government such as 
increases in child tax credit which are clearly beyond the remit of local 

                                                 
1
 Average Scores measure: Indices of Deprivation 2007  

Page 19



10 

government.  The actions identified in this paper are within the scope and 
responsibility of the local authority and its key partners.   
 

Defining Child Poverty 
 
The official Government measure of child poverty is defined as children living 
in a family with an income less than 60% of the national median (average) 
after taking into account household size and composition.  Children are 
defined as individuals under the age of 16, plus 16/17 years old in full time 
education.   
 
As an illustration, using this measure a couple with one child under 14 would 
be living in poverty if they had an income below £11,569 per year (at 2005/06 
prices) and a lone parent with one child aged under 14 would be living in 
poverty with an annual income below £7,540.  
 
  
 
The National Context 
 
7 In the mid to late 1990s the United Kingdom suffered higher child 
poverty than nearly all other industrialised nations. In 1999 the Government 
pledged to eradicate child poverty in the UK within a generation - by 2020 -  
with interim commitments to cut it by a quarter by 2004 and by half by 2010.  
Although child poverty was reduced by 16% in 2004/5, the target to reduce it 
by a quarter was missed.   
 

8 Nationally nearly one in three children - 29% - are growing up poor.  
But some groups have higher than average rates of child poverty including : 
 

� some Black and Minority Ethnic groups 
� single parents  
� disabled parents  
� parents with a disabled child 
� refugee families  
� families with many children  
� teenage parents. 

 
9 At the same time, it is worth underscoring that child poverty is much 
more widespread than is perhaps generally realised – poverty is not limited to 
workless and/or single parent families. Indeed almost six in ten (57%) of poor 
households have someone in work; in London 30% of children who live with 
both parents are poor.   
 

 

London Context 
 
10 London has higher levels of child poverty than the rest of the country. 
 

Page 20



11 

� During a three-year period, 2003 – 2006, over 650,000 children in 
London lived under the poverty line. This is 41% of London’s children 
compared with 29% nationally. 

 
� There are 105 wards across London where the percentage of children 

living in families who are in receipt of key benefits is at least twice the 
national average; 10 of these wards are in Haringey.   

 
� 55% of children in London who are living with a disabled parent are in 

poverty compared to 39% nationally.  
 

� 60% of children in lone parent families in London are in poverty 
compared to 50% in the UK, and 30% of children in couple families, 
compared to 23% nationally.  

 
� 68% of children in social housing in London live in poverty compared to 

58% nationally. 
 
11 In order to address London’s particularly high rates of child poverty an 
independent body, The London Child Poverty Commission, was set up by the 
Mayor of London and London Councils in February 2006. The Commission’s 
report was published in February 2008. See Appendix A for further details.  
 
 
Haringey Context 
 
12 At present it is not possible to measure child poverty at the borough 
level – at least not using the government’s preferred measure (children living 
in families with incomes below 60% of the median).   Until data is available 
local authorities are expected to use uptake of out of work benefits as a proxy 
for poverty – including Job Seekers’ Allowance, Incapacity Benefit, Income 
Support and Pension Credit.   
 
13 According to DWP figures, between 2004-2007 the percentage of 
children living in families who are in receipt of out of work benefits has 
declined by 4% to 36.4%. This downward trend is projected to continue for the 
next four years with an estimated 35% of children living in poverty by 2011.  

Page 21



12 

14 Some facts, figures and trends  
 
 

  
Number of 
Children 

Children in families 
claiming out of 
work benefits 

% of 
Children in 

poverty  

April 2004 47400 19145 40.4  

April 2005 48085 19080 39.7  

April 2006 49320 19090 38.7  

April 2007 50475 18350 36.4  

April 2008 50115 18105 36.1  

April 2009 49990 17845 35.7  

April 2010 49745 17595 35.4  

April 2011 49545 17350 35.0  
   Source: DWP  

     

 

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

   Source: DWP  

     

 

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

For more information on child poverty in Haringey please see Appendix B. 
Tackling Child Poverty in Haringey 

Actual  

Projected  

Page 22



13 

 
15 Tackling child poverty is a priority for Haringey Council and the 
Haringey Strategic Partnership.  This is reflected in Haringey’s Children and 
Young People’s Plan, the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) and takes 
full account of ethnic, cultural and religious needs of Haringey people.   
 
16 The Council’s commitment to tackling child poverty is also reflected in 
Local Area Agreement targets around worklessness and improving 
educational attainment, and for our new LAA (2008-11), a new target 
committing us explicitly to reducing child poverty.  
 
 
Our Child Poverty Objectives 
 
17 We have identified four objectives that the council needs to meet in 
order to achieve a substantial reduction in child poverty, each elaborated in 
the next section.  These are adapted from already existing service priorities, 
although they also reflect objectives identified and recommendations made in 
the London Child Poverty Commission report.  
 

Objective 1: Increasing parental employment in sustainable jobs  
Objective 2:  Improving take up of benefits and tax credits 
Objective 3: Reducing educational attainment gaps for children in  
   poverty  
Objective 4: Ensuring all Haringey children have decent and secure 
   homes.  

 
 
OBJECTIVE 1: INCREASING PARENTAL EMPLOYMENT IN   
  SUSTAINABLE JOBS 
 
18 Worklessness is a major cause of poverty. The largest out-of-work 
group in London are those with dependant children. However, it is increasingly 
being recognised that in-work poverty is a major problem too. There is a need 
to improve people’s skills which will enable them to secure better paid jobs as 
well as helping them to sustain jobs and progress at work. 
 
19 Current initiatives include: 
 

Delivering and promoting the Haringey Guarantee which supports 
residents farthest away from the labour market into sustained 
employment.  To date, the Guarantee has helped over 150 residents 
into work and has supported over 100 lone parents through training, 
volunteering, work placements or jobs.  The programme offers a 
guarantee: 

 
� to local residents to deliver quality driven employment and 

skills programmes  

Page 23



14 

� to employers by providing local workers who meet or are 
trained to meet their recruitment and skills needs and who have 
a positive attitude to work 

� from employers to guarantee interviews for beneficiaries of 
projects who can be demonstrated to be ‘Guarantee Ready’ and 
meet the person specification for the role 

 
� Developing “Families into Work” in Northumberland Park with the aim 

of tackling worklessness in the community and amongst lone parent 
and couple families through an intensive programme of support around 
a range of needs. 

 
� Working in partnership with mainstream welfare to work providers such 

as Reed and Working Links to encourage workless couple families and 
single parents back into work, particularly single parents with children 
under 12. 

 
� Working in partnership with Neighbourhood Management and Job 

Centre Plus, The Children and Young People’s Service  have 
established a range of targeted projects and initiatives to support 
parents into employment, including promoting clear referral routes to 
employment and training support providers and establishing Jobs 
Clubs, CV workshops, and Job Fairs in Children’s Centres. 

 
Future Priorities 
 
20 Delivering and Promoting the Haringey Guarantee 
 

� To strengthen existing partnerships and establish new partnerships to 
support disadvantaged groups, including lone parents and long-term 
benefit claimants, develop partnerships to deliver more family-friendly 
employment opportunities, and work to extend the programme’s reach, 
including exploring the potential for joint-commissioning with Job 
Centre Plus and developing the North London Pledge. 

 
� To develop a stronger and more integrated in-work support offer, 

incorporating elements such as tax credits and Train to Gain, to help 
break the cycle of welfare to work and back to welfare.   

 
� To continue to lobby Government to increase funding to support people 

into employment and seek further opportunities to assist jobseekers in 
the transition into work. 

 
21 Launching and delivering “Families Into Work” in Northumberland Park 
 

� To robustly monitor and evaluate the pilot to measure the impact of 
combined interventions and the success of the project overall, with a 
view to exploring the viability of expanding it into other areas of 
deprivation in the borough.  

 

Page 24



15 

� To co-ordinate the multi-agency approach to address the multiple 
factors contributing to clients’ social exclusion.  

 
� To establish referral routes between agencies and encourage 

appropriate information sharing. 
 

22 Other 
 

� To align Haringey’s homelessness services with the Haringey 
Guarantee and other local training, education and employment 
provision. 

 
� To increase young offenders’ engagement in suitable education, 

employment and training. 
 

� To ensure all teenage parents known to Supporting Teenage Parents 
have education or employment plans and access to accredited training 
programmes. 

 
� To use the childcare sufficiency audit to identify any gaps in provision 

and to ensure that childcare places are available within the areas of 
most needs. 

 
� To ensure adult education provision especially ESOL provision.  

 
 
OBJECTIVE 2: IMPROVING TAKE UP OF BENEFITS AND TAX CREDITS 
 
23 Many poor families are not aware of all the benefits and tax credits to 
which they might be entitled. London has some of the lowest uptake of certain 
types of benefits in the UK. Benefit and tax credit take-up campaigns have 
proven to be effective in increasing household income for significant numbers 
of low income families.   
 
24 Current initiatives include: 
 

� Working closely with Job Centre Plus to promote the take-up of 
Working Tax and Child Tax Credits. 

 
� Providing income maximisation information through: Customer 

Services, Benefits and Taxation Services, the Financial Assessment 
Team, Homes for Haringey, Housing Services, The Children and 
Young People’s Service, Physical Disabilities Service and Supporting 
People. 

 
� Working in partnership with the Citizen’s Advice Bureau in running  

‘Reaping the Benefits’, a year long project aimed at driving up benefit 
and tax credit take-up, and delivering debt counselling in eight different 
venues in Northumberland Park, Bruce Grove and Noel Park.  

 

Page 25



16 

Future Priorities 
 

� To increase the take-up of Disability related benefits. 
 

� To increase financial capability amongst the most disadvantaged 
communities, including support in accessing benefits such as work and 
family tax credits, subsidised childcare places, educational 
maintenance allowance and community based credit unions. 

 
� To increase take up of Housing Benefit for low paid workers. 

 
� To increase take up of Council Tax Benefit for low paid workers. 

 
� To build on current work to effectively drive up take-up of Working Tax 

and Child Tax Credits. 
 

� To provide local people who struggle with paying Council Tax with the 
opportunity to seek debt management and welfare benefit advice. 

 
� To ensure that staff in Children's Centres and family support workers 

are equipped to provide information on an increased range of financial 
benefits that are available to low income families. 

 
� To visit primary schools and offer parents benefits and tax credit 

advice.  
 

� To further build upon the partnership work with the Citizens Advice 
Bureau. 

 
 
OBJECTIVE 3: REDUCING EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT GAPS FOR 
CHILDREN IN POVERTY  
 
25 Education provides one of the principle routes for escaping 
intergenerational poverty. It provides a child with the skills and confidence to 
navigate through life, offers greater chances for sustainable employment 
opportunities and helps give children a more equal start in life.  
 
26 Children should be given the opportunity to develop their full potential 
and make a success of their lives for themselves and their families. They 
should have the best possible start in life and not be disadvantaged by family 
circumstance.  
 
27 Current initiatives include:  
 

� Children’s Centres which aim to give children the best start in life and 
to support parents offer a range of integrated services including care, 
education, health and family support.  

 
� Extended schools schemes, including breakfast clubs. 

Page 26



17 

 
� The Vulnerable Children: a single multi-agency conversation and the 

single route of referral which both aim to identify the most vulnerable 
learners at the earliest stage of their education. 

 
� National Healthy Schools Programme which aims to raise achievement 

as well as reduce health inequalities and promote social inclusion. 
 

� Intervention programmes at all key stages focussed on improving 
educational achievement.   

 
 
Future Priorities 
 

� To further reduce the number of young people not in education, 
employment or training (NEET). 

 
� To extend at Foundation Stage the Targeted Pupil Initiative to better 

identify the most vulnerable learners at the earliest stage of their 
education and involve their families in wider family learning initiatives. 

 
� To ensure that by 2009 99% of young people leave school with at least 

one qualification.  
 

� To empower parents to maximise their pivotal role of supporting their 
children to make a positive contribution and support them to combat 
deprivation through educational opportunity. 

 
� To explore the case for minimising low attainment at the same time as 

focusing on prioritising high achievement. 
 

� To work with similar London boroughs as a consortium to share best 
practice in relation to reducing child poverty and to ensure that inter-
borough processes regarding mobile families are robust and minimise 
the disruption to children's education when home circumstances are 
changing. 

 
� To review the take-up of free school meals by Haringey families and 

qualifying criteria, to identify any potential areas where take-up maybe 
lower than entitlement and take active steps to improve publicity and to 
support families in making claims. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 4: ENSURING ALL HARINGEY CHILDREN HAVE  
   DECENT AND SECURE HOMES 
 

Page 27



18 

28 Access to adequate housing is an important element of a strategy to 
address child poverty. Housing issues including poor property condition, 
overcrowding, living in temporary accommodation and housing related debt 
can all act as contributing factors to high levels of child poverty.  
 
29 Current initiatives include: 
 

� Delivery of a NRF funded “Tackling Fuel Poverty” project which is 
adopting innovate ways to alleviate fuel poverty. 

 
� Availability of floating support services to families who need to move 

into temporary accommodation to help them settle into a 
neighbourhood and access the services they need. 

 
� Education Welfare Officer working with Housing officers to minimise the 

impact of pupil mobility on children’s education.  
 

� Joint working with partner agencies through Hearthstone to support 
survivors of domestic violence to minimise the disruption to their lives.  

 
� Availability of advice and support for households who are experiencing 

benefit or debt problems, which may threaten their home.   
 

� Allocation of social housing lets through Home Connections, the choice 
based lettings scheme.  

 
Future Priorities 
 

� To strengthen links between Supporting People & Supporting Teenage 
Parents to ensure appropriate accommodation is available and 
accessible. 

 
� To reduce the number households living in temporary accommodation 

by 50% by 2010.  
 

� To address overcrowding across tenure. 
 

� To deliver on the decent homes programme. 
 

� To expand Hearthstone to increase the range of services available to 
survivors of domestic violence. 

 
� To deliver initiatives to tackle fuel poverty. 

 
� To ensure young offenders have suitable housing and housing related 

support services.  
Implementation, monitoring and evaluation 
 
30 An action plan has been developed to deliver this strategy and it 
compliments and links with the action plans of the various HSP theme boards. 

Page 28



19 

The action plan is a rolling three year document which will be monitored 
quarterly and reviewed and updated annually,  in a similar way to all LAA 
action plans.  Progress reports will be presented to Cabinet and to several 
theme boards.    
 
31 The Children and Young People’s Service will be responsible for 
managing the strategy, and for monitoring and evaluating the action plan, with 
support from the Corporate Policy team.   
 
32 The strategy will be monitored internally by the Regeneration Stream 
Board and will report to the Children and Young People’s Service Partnership 
theme board of the HSP.   
 
 
Consultation 
 
33 The strategy and action plan will be sent out for consultation to external 
partners through the HSP and its partnership boards beginning September 
2008.    
 
 
 
 

Page 29



20 

Appendix A 
 
The London Child Poverty Commission [LCPC] 
 
The LCPC identified the factors driving child poverty in London above the 
national average. These include: 
 

� London’s population has a high share of groups who face high poverty 
risks at national level, including most ethnic minority groups, lone 
parents and families in social housing. 

� While there has been major increases in lone parent employment 
outside the capital this has been less marked in London. 

� Higher cost of living means the gain from moving from benefits to 
employment is worth less in real terms for some families. 

� There is a relative shortage of part-time child care provision. 
� Many part-time service sector jobs pay lower wages than in the rest of 

the UK. 
� Fewer part time opportunities reduce employment chances for disabled 

parents 
 
 

London Child Poverty Commission - Recommendations 
 
The Commission made 26 recommendations across four broad themes:  
 

� Employment and Skills  
� Incomes and Incentives  
� Child Development and Education  
� Housing  

 
Recommendations of particular relevance to local services include: 
 

� Jobcentre Plus to work with employers to raise understanding of 
mental health issues and promote best practice in supporting people 
with mental health difficulties in work. 

� The Low Pay Commission to consider the case for a London minimum 
wage. 

� Transport for London to introduce concessions for lower income 
workers. 

� Government, GLA and councils to find additional funding for extended 
schools in London. 

� London Councils to improving post-16 options for young people. 
� Policies to ensure minimum disruption of school career for children 

living in temporary accommodation. 
� Improved support for children moving from primary to secondary 

school. 
� Social landlords and their partners to provide closer integration of 

housing and employment services. 
 

Appendix B 

Page 30



21 

 
Child Poverty in Haringey 
 

� As of April 2005 the three Haringey wards with the highest levels of 
children living in families in receipt of key benefits are : 

 
1. Northumberland Park 54.6% 
2. White Hart Lane  52.7% 
3. Tottenham Green  52.4% 

 
� As of March 2007, 8,598 children live in temporary accommodation. 

 
� There are a total of 10,775 pupils eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) 

out of a total of 33,865 pupils aged 5-16 years in Haringey schools.  
For pupils living in Haringey there are 9,956 eligible for FSM out of a 
total of 29,806 pupils aged 5-16 years.   

 
� The 2007 Haringey’s Housing Needs Assessment indicates that 8.9% 

of households are overcrowded. Over crowding was more predominant 
in wards of Bruce Grove, Seven Sisters and White Hart Lane.  
Overcrowding brings particular problems for children and young people 
and adversely impacts upon their education.   

 
� The Index of Multiple Deprivation 2007 (IMD 2007) ranks every area of 

England according to its degree of deprivation.  It shows that is a 
measure of multiple deprivation at small area level; it draws together a 
number of socio-economic criteria such as education and income so 
that comparisons can be made across the country. The Index of 
Multiple Deprivation 2007 indicates that 16 of Haringey’s 144 Super 
Output Areas (SOA) are amongst the 5% most deprived in England, 
while a further 25 SOA are amongst the 5-10% most deprived. 

 
� The IMD also provides information on Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children (IDACI). This is the proportion of the under-16s in a family in 
receipt of means-tested benefits. The IDACI 2007 shows that 57 SOA 
are in the 0.1% to 5% of the most deprived in England.  A further 23 
are amongst the 5-10% most deprived.  

Page 31



22 

 

 
 
s:\cs\dirf\allf\delivery and performance\cypsp\supporting material\2008\child poverty 
report+strategy sept 08 v3.doc 

Page 32



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 T

O
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
 T

H
E

 F
O

U
R

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
H

IL
D

 P
O

V
E

R
T

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 1

: 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
a
re

n
ta

l 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

jo
b

s

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

'F
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
to

 W
o
rk

'

2
3
0
 (

1
1
0
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

) 
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 1

2
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 (

L
A

A
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t)

1
8
0
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 (
6
 m

o
n
th

s
 +

) 
In

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
(I

B
) 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 

in
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 (

L
A

A
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t)

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

N
1
5
3
 R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 c
la

im
in

g
 

in
c
o
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

) 
  
  
  

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 P

le
d
g
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
  
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 W

a
lt
h
a
m

 

F
o
re

s
t

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 I
n
to

 W
o
rk

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
in

 N
o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

J
C

P
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 w
e
lf
a
re

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
: 

- 
N

e
w

 D
e
a
ls

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 N

D
 f
o
r 

lo
n
e
 

p
a
re

n
ts

) 

- 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
Z

o
n
e

- 
P

a
th

w
a
y
s
 T

o
 W

o
rk

S
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

2
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

) 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

z
e
ro

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 (

7
8
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
7
; 
4
4
 j
o
b
s
 f
o
r 

lo
n
e
 

p
a
re

n
ts

)

IB
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

z
e
ro

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 (

1
1
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
7
)

O
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

c
la

im
 r

a
te

 (
N

I 
1
5
3
) 

- 

2
9
.1

%

L
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

1
1
0
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 (

b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
)

IB
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

1
8
0
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 (

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
)

O
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 

ra
te

 (
N

I 
1
5
3
) 

- 
4
.7

%
 b

y
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 -

 1
9
0
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 I
n
to

 W
o
rk

 -
 1

0
0
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1

N
o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 P

le
d
g
e
 -

 1
0
0
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

(b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
)

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t

- 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
: 
7
3
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s

- 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 -

 7
5
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s

IB
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t

-2
0
0
8
/0

9
: 
8
5
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s

-2
0
0
9
/1

0
: 
8
5
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 I
n
to

 W
o
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 N

o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 -
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 P

le
d
g
e
 -

 

A
p
ri
l/
M

a
y
 2

0
0
8

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e
/D

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 I
n
to

 

W
o
rk

/D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

P
le

d
g
e
/A

g
re

e
in

g
 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
o
u
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

c
la

im
 r

a
te

 (
N

I 
1
5
3
) 

- 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
J
C

P
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 -

 J
C

P

N
I 
1
1
6
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 3

0
.5

%
 b

y
 2

0
1
1
 

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

P
le

d
g
e
 j
o
b
s
 T

a
rg

e
ts

: 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
: 
2
3
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s
, 

-2
0
0
9
/1

0
: 
5
7
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 

jo
b
s
; 

-A
p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 -

 2
0
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 "

W
o
rk

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
" 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
in

d
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 c
a
n
d
id

a
te

s
 

fo
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l

4
0
0
0
 L

o
n
e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 

in
it
ia

lly
 m

a
ile

d

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 L

o
c
a
l 

T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
lig

n
in

g
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s

 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

2
3
0
 (

1
1
0
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

) 
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 j
o
b
s
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 1

2
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 (

L
A

A
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t)

1
8
0
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 (
6
 m

o
n
th

s
 +

) 
In

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
(I

B
) 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 

in
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 (

L
A

A
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t)

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

N
1
5
3
 R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 c
la

im
in

g
 

in
c
o
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

) 
 

N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

N
I 
1
5
8
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
n
 

d
e
c
e
n
t'

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 

c
le

a
r 

ro
u
te

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
ilo

ts
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 W

o
rk

in
g
 F

u
tu

re
s
. 

N
o
n
e

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
tu

re
 o

f 

d
a
ta

 o
n
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
' e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

tu
s

In
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
c
re

a
te

s
 

lo
c
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 -

 J
u
ly

 

2
0
0
8

D
a
ta

 c
a
p
tu

re
 -

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 

2
0
0
9

D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 -

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 

2
0
0
9

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 

s
u
rg

e
ry

 -
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

G
ro

u
p
 (

s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 

o
f 
th

e
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
p
)

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 1

Page 33



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g

N
I 
4
5
 Y

o
u
n
g
 O

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

E
T

E
).

Y
O

S
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 t
o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

m
e
n
to

r 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 i
n
to

 

Y
O

S
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
o
 b

a
s
e
 l
in

e
 s

e
t 
- 

Y
o
u
th

 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
re

 

lo
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 E

T
E

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 i
n
to

 E
T

E
 -

 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
to

 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

2
0
0
8
/0

9
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

M
e
n
to

r 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 A

B
G

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

Y
O

S

A
ll 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 k
n
o
w

n
 

to
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

N
I 
1
1
2
 U

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 1

4
-1

9
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
te

e
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 f
a
th

e
rs

1
0
0
%

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
a
g
e
 

(a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
)

9
8
%

 o
f 
th

o
s
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 T

e
e
n
 P

a
re

n
ts

 &
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
0

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

9
8
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 T

P
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
; 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 
1
6
-

1
9
 w

h
o
 a

re
 k

n
o
w

n
 t
o
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

a
re

n
ts

 b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
; 
1
0
0
%

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
g
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
.

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

(a
ls

o
 i
n
 

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
)

P
a
rt

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 1

4
-1

9
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 p
a
rt

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 L

A
A

 

(a
m

t 
tb

c
)

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r 
&

 1
4
-1

9
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r

U
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

a
n
y
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
 

a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 
n
e
e
d
s

N
I 
8
8
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

N
I 
1
1
8
 T

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 
c
h
ild

 c
a
re

 b
y
 l
o
w

-i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

fa
m

ili
e
s

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 
c
lu

b
s
, 
p
la

y
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
y
o
u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild

c
a
re

 S
u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 v

ia
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 C

h
ild

c
a
re

 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

u
rv

e
y

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

C
h
ild

c
a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

u
d
it
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 0

-1
9
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r 

- 
d
u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
.

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

P
la

c
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

O
ff
ic

e
r

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
d
u
lt
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 E

S
O

L
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
T

a
k
e
 u

p
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

A
d
u
lt
, 
C

u
lt
u
re

 &
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
0
8
/0

9
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

A
L
S

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 r

e
la

te
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
C

la
im

 I
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

A
d
v
e
rt

is
e
/m

a
rk

e
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
w

e
b
 b

a
s
e
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
h
e
c
k
e
r 

'E
n
ti
tl
e
d
 T

o
'

N
o
n
e

D
W

P
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
ta

k
e
 u

p
.

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

L
a
u
n
c
h
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 i
n
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

0
8

In
c
o
m

e
 

M
a
x
im

is
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

£
1
0
,0

0
0

S
V

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

&
 O

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e

P
ro

v
id

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
v
ic

e
 c

lin
ic

s
 a

t 
a
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 

u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
o
n
e

T
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

A
p
r-

0
8

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

S
V

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

&
 O

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 2

: 

M
a
x
im

is
in

g
 

in
c
o

m
e
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

n
d

 

ta
x
 c

re
d

it
s

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 2

Page 34



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

w
o
rk

 &
 f
a
m

ily
 t
a
x
 c

re
d
it
s
, 

s
u
b
s
id

is
e
d
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
s
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

b
a
s
e
d
 c

re
d
it
 u

n
io

n
s

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
W

o
rk

 o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

R
u
n
n
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 1

0
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

n
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 

L
iv

e
s
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

N
I 
1
1
6
 -

 3
0
.5

%
 2

0
1
0
/1

1

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

h
a
s
e
 

tw
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

th
ir
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

c
e
n
tr

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fa

m
ily

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

fa
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

fu
ll 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
.

R
u
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
v
ic

e
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0
8

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

£
1
0
0
K

 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
o
rk

 

in
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 

L
o
c
a
l 
T

a
x
a
ti
o
n

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
lo

w
 p

a
id

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 

b
y
 5

%
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
lo

w
 p

a
id

 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 b
y
 1

0
%

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
1
)A

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/9

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 

a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 £

5
5
K

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

e
a
m

 b
o
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
: 
 a

) 

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 a

n
d
  
b
) 

 a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 

o
f 
T

a
k
e
 u

p
 S

u
rg

e
ri
e
s

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

2
) 

A
 m

a
il 

s
h
o
t 
to

 w
o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 o

r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
  
b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

n
o
t 
to

 b
e
 

c
la

im
in

g
 C

T
C

 o
r 

W
T

C
, 
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 o
u
r 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

T
B

D
 f
ro

m
 B

L
T

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

T
o
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
ro

m
 B

L
T

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

B
L
T

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 

M
a
x
im

is
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 

o
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
/ 
M

a
il 

s
h
o
t 
in

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
8

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

S
tr

e
a
m

 B
o
a
rd

 

fu
n
d
in

g

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 

L
o
c
a
l 
T

a
x
a
ti
o
n

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

 T
a
x
 

C
re

d
it
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

B
e
tt
e
r 

O
ff
 C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

(B
O

C
s
) 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
A

A
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 B
O

C
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 P

le
d
g
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
  
H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 W

a
lt
h
a
m

 

F
o
re

s
t

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 I
n
to

 W
o
rk

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
in

 N
o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

B
O

C
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 (

L
A

A
 

lo
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

z
e
ro

 b
a
s
e
lin

e

  
  
 

B
O

C
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 (

L
A

A
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r)
 -

 4
0
0
 B

O
C

s
 (

b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
)

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

B
O

C
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 (

L
A

A
 

lo
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r)
 -

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

a
n
d
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 T

B
D

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 -

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 M

g
r

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

In
to

 W
o
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t 
- 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 M

g
r

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
N

o
rt

h
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 P

le
d
g
e
 -

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 M

g
r

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 3

Page 35



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 d

e
b
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 i
f 
re

q
u
ir
e
d

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
R

e
a
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

N
/A

R
e
a
c
h
 4

0
0
 n

e
w

 c
lie

n
ts

In
c
re

a
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
y
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
£
1
0
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

lie
n
t 

g
ro

u
p

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

N
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 

th
is

 t
im

e

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

g
r 

a
n
d
 C

A
B

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 a
re

 

e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

th
a
t 
a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 l
o
w

 

in
c
o
m

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

e
q
u
ip

 t
h
e
m

 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
o
le

N
/A

N
/A

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

A
p
r-

0
8

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
M

g
r

T
o
 v

is
it
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

ta
x
 c

re
d
it
 a

d
v
ic

e

N
I1

1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
la

n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
a
y
s

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u
 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 t
a
x
 c

re
d
it
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 i
n
 t
h
re

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

N
/A

N
/A

C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

E
a
rl
ie

s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

u
p
 t
o
 £

1
0
0
k

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 &
 

L
o
c
a
l 
T

a
x
a
ti
o
n

T
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
ild

 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
it
iz

e
n
's

 A
d
v
ic

e
 B

u
re

a
u

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

T
o
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 a

 w
o
rk

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 

C
A

B

N
/A

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
ta

k
e
 u

p
C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

E
a
rl
ie

s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

£
3
0
k

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 3

: 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 

g
a
p

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 

p
o

v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
o
t 
in

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

).
  

N
I 
1
1
7
 1

6
 t
o
 1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
 (

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 1
9
 &

 2
0
 C

Y
P

P
 

&
 L

A
A

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t)

 

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 1

4
-1

9
 

v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 
w

o
rk

 

b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

te
p
 t
o
 

E
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

N
o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro

je
c
t,
 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

4
 p

u
p
ils

, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e

E
n
s
u
re

 7
0
%

 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 f
u
ll-

ti
m

e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

0
0
8
. 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 
- 

z
e
ro

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
- 

4
0
0
 y

e
a
r 

1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 (

b
y
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
)

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

A
g
re

e
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 n

e
w

 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 -
 

A
p
ri
l/
M

a
y
 2

0
0
8

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

G
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
- 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 M

g
r

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

t 
a
g
e
 1

8
 

b
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 

p
u
p
il 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 T

ra
v
e
lle

r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

(e
s
p
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
)

s
e
e
 C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 (

d
a
ta

 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
)

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
  

P
a
re

n
t 
&

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n

w
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
Y

P
S

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 4

Page 36



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

A
t 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 e

x
te

n
d
 

th
e
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 P

u
p
il 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
t 
th

e
 

e
a
rl
ie

s
t 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 w

id
e
r 

fa
m

ily
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

A
ll 

w
o
rk

 f
ro

m
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 T
e
a
m

 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

O
c
to

b
e
r 

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
b
y
 2

0
0
9
 9

9
%

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 (

9
6
%

 b
y
 2

0
0
7
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
0
6
 r

e
s
u
lt
 9

4
.5

%
).

 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

F
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 &

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

o
v
e
 

h
o
m

e
 o

r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
re

q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o
o
d
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

m
o
b
ili

ty
 

le
v
e
ls

 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 F

u
n
d
 f
o
rm

u
la

 w
h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
L
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
  

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
Y

P
S

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
a
m

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n

E
m

p
o
w

e
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

iv
o
ta

l 
ro

le
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

A
ll 

C
Y

P
S

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

T
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t,
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

e
tc

 s
e
t 
in

 C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 

L
iv

e
s

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
L
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
  

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
Y

P
S

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
a
m

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n

T
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

m
in

im
is

in
g
 l
o
w

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 

o
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 h

ig
h
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e

2
0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s

y
e
a
r 

to
 y

e
a
r

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
L
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
Y

P
S

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
a
m

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n

T
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 a

s
 a

 c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 t
o
 

s
h
a
re

 b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
te

r-
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 m

o
b
ile

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

a
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 

d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 h

o
m

e
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

re
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g

N
I 
1
1
6
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

C
o
n
ta

c
t 
Y

o
u
n
g
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 (
G

O
L
) 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s

T
B

A
T

B
A

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
L
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
Y

P
S

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

s
tr

e
a
m

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 T

h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 5

Page 37



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 (
F

S
M

) 
b
y
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a
lif

y
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

a
n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 t
h
a
t 
ta

k
e
-

u
p
 m

a
y
b
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

s
te

p
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 c

la
im

s
.

N
I 
5
2
 -

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
lu

n
c
h
e
s
. 
 N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 b
e
 c

o
u
n
te

d
 

v
ia

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 r

u
n
 b

y
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
F

o
o
d
 T

ru
s
t.
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

e
in

g
 

p
ilo

te
d
 2

0
0
8
, 
fu

ll 
s
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

  

S
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d
 C

a
te

ri
n
g
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
. 
 L

e
a
fl
e
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 w
id

e
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
p
ilo

t 

ru
n
n
in

g
 i
n
 t
w

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
ro

u
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
l,
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
m

p
le

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
lu

n
c
h
, 
p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
e
 

n
e
w

 k
it
c
h
e
n
s
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

F
S

M
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 

P
u
p
il 

L
e
v
e
l 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

C
e
n
s
u
s
 (

P
L
A

C
).

  

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

J
a
n
. 
0
8
 a

re
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

6
7
4
4
, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 4
0
7
9
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
1
3
9
. 
 F

S
M

 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

P
L
A

C
. 
 T

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 

lu
n
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

in
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
F

o
o
d
 t
ru

s
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
. 
  

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 v

ia
 P

L
A

C
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
F

o
o
d
 T

ru
s
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
. 

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
p
u
p
il 

m
o
b
ili

ty
 a

n
 n

e
w

 

p
u
p
ils

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
a
s
 n

e
w

 p
u
p
ils

 O
n
 

g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

R
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
Y

P
S

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 &

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

g
t

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
 4

: 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 h
a
v
e
 

d
e
c
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

s
e
c
u

re
 h

o
m

e
s

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 &
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

is
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
n
e
w

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 n

e
w

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 h
a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

 n
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
e
e
n
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

'fo
s
te

ri
n
g
-t

y
p
e
' p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

L
e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

/U
M

 t
e
a
m

 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
 &

 t
ra

in
 h

o
s
t 

fa
m

ili
e
s

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 T

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
 

&
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 

P
re

g
n
a
n
c
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

T
P

 C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r/
 

J
o
in

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
p
u
b
lic

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
ir
 o

f 

T
P

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 5

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0

N
I1

5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
ly

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 m
e
e
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
.

M
a
x
im

is
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 

th
e
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
.

5
,3

8
9
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 T

A
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8

T
A

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 4

,0
0
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 b

y
 3

1
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
, 
3
,8

0
0
 b

y
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 2

,6
0
0
 

b
y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

lu
s
 

C
L
G

 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

fu
n
d
in

g
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
u
p
p
ly

 &
 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

A
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
e
n
u
re

E
m

p
lo

y
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 O

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

to
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is

in
g
 

u
n
d
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 m

o
v
e
s
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 p

ilo
t.

D
e
liv

e
r 

la
rg

e
r 

h
o
m

e
s
 t
h
o
ro

u
g
h
 n

e
w

 

b
u
ild

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

d
e
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s
.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 R

S
L
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
A

re
a
 B

a
s
e
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 p

ilo
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 c

ro
s
s
 t
e
n
u
re

 O
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

2
0
,4

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

(2
0
0
1
 c

e
n
s
u
s
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

O
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

T
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
a
s
 

p
a
rt

y
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

£
1
1
0
,0

0
0
 C

L
G

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

O
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

P
a
th

fi
n
d
e
r 

s
ta

tu
s

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

N
e
e
d
s
 &

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 6

Page 38



C
h
ild

 P
o
ve

rt
y 

A
c
tio

n
 P

la
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
A

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
T

a
rg

e
t/

H
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

W
h

e
n

 (
p

le
a
s
e
 i
n

s
e
rt

 

c
le

a
r 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
)

R
e
la

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
y
 w

h
o

m

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
: 
M

in
im

is
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
:

- 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll

- 
H

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
:

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
liv

in
g
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d

K
e
y
 L

A
A

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
la

im
 r

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
.

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

N
I 
1
5
8
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
n
 

d
e
c
e
n
t'

D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

a
g
re

e
d
. 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
y
e
a
r 

5
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

p
h
a
s
e
 1

 

o
n
 s

it
e
)

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

.

6
,8

1
9
 h

o
m

e
s
 n

o
n
 d

e
c
e
n
t 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 H

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 E

M
T

 

a
n
d
 i
n
to

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 n
o
n
 d

e
c
e
n
t:

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 4

2
%

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 3

6
%

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 3

0
%

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 

o
f 
B

u
ild

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
p
a
n
d
 H

e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 o
f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 (

D
V

) 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
te

c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
p
e
a
t 
v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 

H
e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
.

C
lo

s
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

o
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 H

e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 o
f 
D

V

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

S
a
n
c
tu

a
ry

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 

to
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
.

6
5
2
 (

0
6
/0

7
)

2
0
1
 (

0
5
/0

6
)

8
1
3
 o

r 
3
8
%

 b
y
 0

9
/1

0

1
5
6
 b

y
 1

0
/1

1

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

7
7
0
 o

r 
3
6
%

 (
0
8
/0

9
)

8
1
3
 o

r 
3
8
%

 (
0
9
/1

0
)

1
7
6
 (

0
8
/0

9
)

1
5
6
 (

0
9
/1

0
)

1
5
6
 (

1
0
/1

1
)

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 

a
g
re

e
d

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

N
e
e
d
s
 &

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

&
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
liv

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 

fu
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 -

 p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
w

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 -

 p
ro

x
y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 'n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
'

D
e
liv

e
ry

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
fu

e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
.

U
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
rm

a
l 
im

a
g
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s

D
e
liv

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 W
a
rm

th
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 -

 1
6
8
3

2
0
0
0
 b

y
 1

0
/1

1
W

e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

0
8
/0

9
 -

 1
0
0
0

0
9
/1

0
 -

 5
0
0

1
0
/1

1
 -

 5
0
0

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

F
u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 

O
ff
ic

e
r

E
n
s
u
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

h
a
v
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

N
I 
4
6
 -

 y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

Y
O

S
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
u
lt

A
n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

0
8
-1

1

W
it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

Y
O

S
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fu
n
d
e
d
 v

ia
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
g
r 

Y
O

S

E
:\
m

o
d
e
rn

g
o
v\

D
a
ta

\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m

D
o
c
s
\2

\8
\4

\A
I0

0
0
1
3
4
8
2
\c

h
ild

p
o
ve

rt
yA

c
ti
o
n
P

la
n
s
e
p
tA

N
N

E
X

0
.x

ls
P

a
g
e
 7

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
Meeting:  Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
 
Date:    25 September 2008 
 
Report Title:   Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy and Action Plan 

 
Report of:   Drug and Alcohol Action Team Partnership Board  
 
 
Summary 
 
Haringey was one of the first Boroughs to have a cross-cutting Alcohol 
Strategy, following the 2004 publication of the Government’s first National 
Alcohol Strategy.  This new draft strategy for 2008-11 (attached) builds upon 
Haringey’s original strategy that ended in March 2008 and takes into account 
new statutory duties and guidance. It is supported by an annual Action Plan. 
 
Its aims are to tackle the health and social harms alcohol causes, as well as 
alcohol-related crime and anti-social behaviour.   
 
The Strategy was developed over a five months period from April  – August 
2008, through interviews with stakeholders and a conference in July 2008.  
It incorporates the findings of a review of local alcohol related problems and 
takes into account available alcohol related data, alcohol problems and 
concerns.  
 
Significant Issues 
 

• Haringey has the highest rate of male alcohol-related mortality in 
London 

• Alcohol-related hospital admissions rates have more than doubled over 
a five year period from 2002/03-2006/07. This is part of a regional and 
national picture. 

• Alcohol is also linked to violent crime in the borough, as well as anti-
social behaviour such as street drinking.  

• Parental drinking is a factor in a number of cases focused on the 
protection of children. 

  
The new Local Area Agreement includes a target to reduce alcohol-related 
hospital admissions.  The Strategy addresses this, along with a number of 
other targets where alcohol misuse is a contributing factor.  
 
To be effective in reducing alcohol-related harm, there needs to be a 
coordinated response from a wide variety of organisations. The Strategy 
objectives and action plan fall into the remit of three of Haringey’s Strategic 
Partnerships Boards: Children and Young Peoples Strategic Partnership 

Agenda Item 9Page 41



2 

Board(CYPSPB), Safer Communities Executive Board and the Well-Being 
Board. 
 
An alcohol strategy group sitting underneath the DAAT will have oversight of 
the implementation as a whole but it will be the responsibility of the individual 
boards to monitor delivery against their part of the Action Plan.  
 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the CYPSPB endorse the Strategy and Action Plan. 
 
To note that the Strategy will be considered by Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 6 October and Cabinet on 18 November 2008.  

 
 
Financial Comments  
 
The new indicative health costs required to deliver the Strategy are £200K. 
Funding decisions will be made by the Teaching Primary Care Trust’s 
Priorities Panel following submission of a Business Case. The focus will be on 
brief interventions in primary care, Accident & Emergency and ward based 
settings.  
 
Legal Comments  
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on the Council, together with 
the local Police Authority, chief officer of Police, Fire Service and Primary 
Care Trust, to formulate and implement  strategies designed to reduce crime 
and disorder and to combat the misuse of  alcohol (and other substance 
abuse) in the local authority area.  This strategy has been drafted in 
accordance with that duty. 
 
 
For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Marion Morris 
Title: Drug and Alcohol Strategy Manager  
Tel: 020 8489 6962 
Email address:  marion.morris@haringey.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

1 

Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 
 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The need for an alcohol strategy 
There is a statutory duty on Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships to 
have a strategy that addresses alcohol-related crime and disorder.  
Government guidance, in line with the national alcohol strategy Safe. Sensible. 
Social., calls for strategies that go beyond a crime focus and also address 
health harms and the impact of alcohol on children and families. 
 
Haringey has high rates of alcohol-related mortality compared to the rest of 
London, and as is the case elsewhere, rising rates of alcohol-related hospital 
admissions.  Alcohol is also linked to domestic violence and other violent crime 
in the borough, as well as anti-social behaviour such as street drinking.  
Parental drinking is a factor in many cases that come to the child protection 
register. 
 
This strategy builds on Haringey’s Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2005/08 
and addresses alcohol-related harms by coordinating existing activity better, 
improving our understanding of the issues, and developing new responses to 
the problems. 

 
1.2 Key aims and objectives 
The overarching strategic aim is: 
 
To minimise the health and social harms, violence and anti-social 
behaviour associated with alcohol, while ensuring that people are able to 
enjoy alcohol safely and responsibly. 
 
Objectives of the strategy are: 

• to reduce alcohol-related crime, especially violent crime, and anti-social 
behaviour 

• to reduce the levels of chronic and acute ill-health caused by alcohol, 
resulting in fewer alcohol-related accidents and hospital admissions 

• to prevent alcohol-related harm to children and young people 

• to raise awareness of sensible drinking 
 

1.3 Strategic framework 
The strategy objectives fall within the remit of three of Haringey Strategic 
Partnerships thematic boards: Safer Communities, Well-being and Children and 
Young People.  The implementation plan is therefore split across all of them, 
with each board responsible for the delivery of the appropriate actions. 
 
An alcohol strategy group sitting under the DAAT will have oversight of the 
implementation plan as a whole, and will be responsible for evaluating the 

Page 43



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

2 

effectiveness of the strategy and for reviewing the implementation plan on an 
annual basis. 

 
1.4  Monitoring and Evaluation   
Actions within the strategy are incorporated into the action plans of various 
boards that report into the HSP via its thematic partnerships. The existing 
performance management and monitoring structures within those partnerships 
will monitor and evaluate the individual activities and initiatives they are 
responsible for. The Drug and Alcohol Action Team’s Alcohol Strategy Group 
will co-ordinate and evaluate the overall effectiveness of the strategy reporting 
into the Cabinet Member for Enforcement and Safer Communities.   
 
 

1.5 Outline of targets  
The strategy is linked to the following targets: 
 
Indicator Baseline Target 2010/11 

NI 21: Dealing with local concerns about anti-
social behaviour and crime by the local 
council and police   

24% 28% feel very or fairly well 
informed 

NI 39 and VSC26: Alcohol-related hospital 
admissions  
 

1342 
(06/07) 

1824 (a 1% reduction each 
year in the underlying 
upward trend) 

NI 111: First time entrants to the Youth 
Justice System aged 10-17 

373 tba 

NI 112: Under 18 conception rate 59 tba 
NI 113: Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 20 
year olds 

15% 
 

15% (screened or tested) 

NI 121: Mortality rate from all circulatory 
diseases at ages under 75 

98 per 
100,000 
(07/08) 

92 

NI 195: Improved street and environmental 
cleanliness (levels of a. graffiti, b. litter, c. 
detritus and d. fly-posting) 

a. 21% b. 
32% 
c. 3% d. 
3% 
(2006/07) 

a. 12% b. 
24% c. 3% 
d. 2% 

Local target: Repeat victimisation of domestic 
violence (2007-2010 stretch target) 

201 
(05/06) 

156 

Local target: Number of accidental dwelling 
fires (2007 –2010 stretch target) 

248 
(05/06) 

230 (stretch target ends 
2010) 

 

Page 44



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

3 

2. Background 
 

2.1 Introduction 
Alcohol can play an important and positive role in British society but alcohol 
misuse can harm individuals, families and the wider community.  The economic 
impact of alcohol misuse is around £20bn per year for England and Wales. 
 
In June 2007 the Government published Safe. Sensible. Social. The next steps 
in the National Alcohol Strategy, which builds on the strategy for England it 
produced in 2004. Safe. Sensible. Social. restates the Government’s long term 
aim, which is to minimise the health harms, violence, crime and anti-social 
behaviour associated with alcohol, while ensuring that people are able to enjoy 
alcohol safely and responsibly. It has three overarching goals: 

• to reduce the levels of alcohol-related violent crime, disorder and anti-
social behaviour 

• to reduce the percentage of the public who perceive drunk and rowdy 
behaviour to be a problem in their area 

• to reduce chronic and acute ill health caused by alcohol, resulting in 
fewer alcohol-related accidents and hospital admissions 

 
These goals are reflected in a new Public Service Agreement (PSA) for alcohol, 
which for the first time commits the Government to reducing alcohol-related 
harm.  Associated with the PSA is a new statutory duty on Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnerships to put in place a local strategy to tackle alcohol-related 
crime and antisocial behaviour.  Guidance from the Home Office, Department 
of Health and the Department for Children, Schools and Families says that it is 
best practice for these local strategies also to address health harm and the 
impact of alcohol on children and families. 
 
In Haringey, the Drug and Alcohol Action Team produced, with partner 
agencies, a three-year alcohol harm reduction strategy in 2005.  This document 
updates and replaces the 2005-08 strategy.  It takes into account Safe. 
Sensible. Social. and associated new duties and guidance, and incorporates 
the findings of a review of local alcohol-related problems and concerns.  It was 
developed by Ranzetta Consulting for the DAAT during Spring 2008 through 
discussion with stakeholders and a conference in July. 
 
The findings of a review of teenagers’ alcohol and drug use, commissioned by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in summer 2008 will be incorporated into 
the strategy when they are available. 
 

2.2 Alcohol-related harm in Haringey 
 
2.2.1 Borough profile 
The borough's population has grown by 8.4% since 1991and is projected to 
grow by a further 12.6% by 2016 to 233,125.  In the 2001 Census, 34.4% of 
residents were from 'non-white' communities.  Many of the ethnic groups in 
Haringey are white. When ‘other white’ born in Eastern Europe and the Middle 
East, White Irish and ‘other white’ born in the UK and Ireland are included in the 

Page 45



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

4 

definition of black and ethnic minorities then almost 49% of Haringey’s 
population is from black and ethnic minority communities.  
 
Using the Index of Multiple Deprivation, Haringey is the 18th most deprived 
authority nationally and the 5th most deprived authority in London.  27% of 
Haringey’s Super Output Areas (SOAs) are amongst the 10% most deprived in 
the country.  These SOAs are concentrated in the east of the borough, mainly 
in White Hart Lane and Northumberland Park (see figure 1 below). 
 
 

Figure 1 

SevenSevenSevenSevenSevenSevenSevenSevenSeven

 Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters Sisters

Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen
HarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringayHarringay

Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud Stroud 

GreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreenGreen

Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell Muswell 

HillHillHillHillHillHillHillHillHill

FortisFortisFortisFortisFortisFortisFortisFortisFortis

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green

BoundsBoundsBoundsBoundsBoundsBoundsBoundsBoundsBounds

 Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green Green
WhiteWhiteWhiteWhiteWhiteWhiteWhiteWhiteWhite

 Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane Hart Lane

NorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberlandNorthumberland

ParkParkParkParkParkParkParkParkPark

Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham Tottenham 

HaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleHaleBruceBruceBruceBruceBruceBruceBruceBruceBruce

 Grove Grove Grove Grove Grove Grove Grove Grove Grove

AlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandraAlexandra

Crouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch EndCrouch End
HighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgateHighgate

HornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornseyHornsey

Noel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel ParkNoel Park

St Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann'sSt Ann's

West GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest GreenWest Green

WoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodsideWoodside

Index of Deprivation Score

50.3 to 66.4
41.1 to 50.3
33.7 to 41.1
27.2 to 33.7
11.4 to 27.2

Indices of Deprivation 2004
ID Score for Super Output Areas

Source: Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, Indices of Deprivation 2004

Haringey Average score = 37.7
13th Most deprived district in the 
country

 
 
 
2.2.2 Prevalence of alcohol use and misuse 
Adults 16 to 64 
On average Londoners drink less often than the rest of the population in 
England, and fewer drink above the recommended sensible limits (see box 1).  
The 2004 General Household Survey (GHS) found that: 

• 32% of men in London reported drinking above sensible limits 
(compared with 39% in England as a whole) 

• 15% of women in London reported drinking above sensible limits (22% 
for England) 

 
These percentages should be treated with caution as they are based on self-
reported consumption, and people often understate the amount they drink.   
 
The Department of Health’s 2005 Alcohol Needs Assessment Research Project 
found that a smaller percentage of Londoners are hazardous or harmful 

Page 46



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

5 

drinkers (see box 1 for definitions) than in England as a whole, but a higher 
proportion of Londoners are dependent drinkers, as follows: 

• 21% of adult Londoners (16 to 64) are hazardous or harmful drinkers 
(compared with 23% in England) 

• 5% of adult Londoners are dependent drinkers (4% for England) 
 
For Haringey, this suggests that (based on ONS 2001 population figures): 

• 31,653 adults aged 16 to 64 are hazardous or harmful drinkers 

• 7,536 adults aged 16 to 64 are alcohol dependent  
 
The North West Public Health Observatory (NWPHO) has produced synthetic 
estimates of harmful drinking, defined as consumption of more than 50 units of 
alcohol per week for males, and more than 35 units of alcohol per week for 
females.   For Haringey the proportion is 6.17%.  Therefore: 

• 10,065 adults are drinking at harmful levels 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Older people 
A Scottish study1 on alcohol and older people reported survey evidence that 
older people drink lower quantities of alcohol than younger people. There is 
evidence that the pattern of drinking changes – as people get older they are 
likely to drink more frequently, but to consume less per day. Over recent years, 
the number of older people who exceed recommended levels appears to be 
increasing. 
 
The prevalence of problematic drinking in Haringey amongst older people is not 
known at present, but anecdotal evidence suggests it is worth investigation. 
 
Children 
On average young Londoners (aged 11-15) drink less often than young people 
in England. In 2000 the survey of smoking, drinking and drug use in young 
people (Information Centre) found that: 

• 17% of boys in London had drunk in the last week, compared with 25% 
in England 

                                            
1
 Alcohol and Ageing: Is alcohol a major threat to healthy ageing for the baby boomers? NHS 

Health Scotland, 2006 

Box 1: sensible limits and definitions of drinking levels 

Sensible drinking: no more than 3-4 units a day for men, and 
no more than 2-3 units a day for women. 
Binge drinking: 8 or more units of alcohol for men, and 6 or 
more units of alcohol for women on their heaviest drinking day 
in the past week. 
Hazardous drinking: drinking above recognised ‘sensible’ 
levels but not yet experiencing harm. 
Harmful drinking: drinking above ‘sensible’ levels and 
experiencing harm.  
Alcohol dependence: drinking above ‘sensible’ levels and 
experiencing harm and symptoms of dependence. 

Page 47



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

6 

• 14% of girls in London had drunk in the last week (23% in England) 
 
The 2006 survey found that in England the prevalence of drinking alcohol in the 
last week had declined to 20% of girls and 21% of boys.   It also found that the 
mean alcohol consumption per week of 11 to 15 year olds who had drunk in the 
last week was 12.3 units for boys and 10.5 for girls (in England). 
 
Ethnic differentials in alcohol use 
In 2004 the Health Survey for England found that people from many ethnic 
minority groups in England (Indian, Pakistani, Bangladeshi, Black Caribbean 
and Black African) were on average more likely to be non-drinkers and less 
likely to drink above recommended levels or to binge drink that the general 
population. People from the Irish group, however, were more likely to drink 
above recommended levels and to binge drink than the general population. 
 
Socio-economic differentials in alcohol use 
Per capita consumption and alcohol-related harm are closely correlated at 
population level, but the harm an individual suffers as result of alcohol misuse 
depends on the context in which they drink as well as the amount they drink.  
An individual with low socio-economic status is likely to suffer more harm 
(through factors such as poorer nutrition, financial problems, less secure 
employment) than somebody of higher status who is drinking the same amount 
(London Health Observatory briefing on alcohol and Choosing Health, 2006).  
 
 
2.2.3 Health harm 
According to data collated by the North West Public Health Observatory, 
Haringey has a significantly worse mortality rate for chronic liver disease than 
the English average.  Haringey has the highest male mortality rate in London 
from alcohol-attributable causes (figure 2), and the 18th highest for females. 

Page 48



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

7 

 

Figure 2: alcohol-attributable mortality, males (2005) (source: NWPHO) 

 
Hospital admissions for alcohol-related conditions more than doubled from 
2002/03 to 2006/07.  The current rate of increase in admissions is projected to 
see Haringey match the higher London and English rate by 2010/11 if left 
unchecked. 
 
An audit of all patients attending North Middlesex A&E department during a 10 
day period in March 2007 found that 52% of male patients and 21% of female 
were AUDIT C positive – ie drinking at hazardous levels.  The AUDIT C scores 
for 13% of all patients indicated dependent drinking. 
 
Alcohol is often used problematically by people with mental health problems, 
which can seriously affect the ability of services to assess, treat and care for 
patients safely and effectively. The use and alcohol can make symptoms worse 
and trigger acute illness relapse.   Local data from the Dual Diagnosis Service 
shows that 26% of patients triaged during the 6 month period from September 
07 were alcohol users (figure 3). 
 
 
Figure 3: Drug choice of dual diagnosis clients 

Page 49



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

8 

 
 
2.2.4 Alcohol-related crime and anti-social behaviour 
Crime 
North West Public Health Observatory data suggests that Haringey is ranked 
seventeenth highest in London for alcohol-related violence (crude rate per 
1,000 population) (see figure 4 below). 
 

Alcohol

26%

Cannabis

35%

Cocaine

7%
Crack

14%
Heroin

3%Khat

1%
MDMA

1%
Skunk

10%

Unspecified

3%

Alcohol

Cannabis

Cocaine

Crack

Heroin

Khat

MDMA

Skunk

Unspecified

Page 50



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

9 

Figure 4: alcohol-related violent crime 2006/07 

 
 
 
Analysis of crime statistics for 2005/06 and 2006/07 indicates that alcohol-
related violence accounted for 10% of all violence in Haringey, and less than 
2% of all offences.  However, under-recording of the involvement of alcohol in 
crime is common in London and elsewhere, so 10% is probably lower than the 
true figure. Actual bodily harm (ABH) was the most common alcohol-related 
violence against the person offence (50%), followed by harassment (24%) and 
common assault (15%).   
 
The map below shows hotspots of alcohol related crime in Haringey for the 
period of October 2005 to September 2007. The areas highlighted with a black 
border have the greatest concentration of licensed premises.  
 

Page 51



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

10 

 
 
 

 
Of the 688 crime-related hospital admissions of Haringey residents during 
January to October 2006, 245 (36%) were also alcohol-related. Of these, 21 
admissions (3%) were flagged as violence-related. 
 
 
Domestic and gender based violence 
The links between substance misuse and domestic violence are well known; 
the Crime in England and Wales 2001/2 survey found that domestic violence 
victims reported 45% of perpetrators were under the influence of alcohol at the 
time of the assault.  Further, national research suggests between 35% and 70% 
of survivors of domestic violence misuse drugs and alcohol.   
 
 Domestic violence constitutes 30 per cent of all violent crime in Haringey. In 
2006/7 the police recorded 3310 incidents of Domestic Violence in Haringey 
which amounts to a decrease of almost 10% compared to the previous year. 
2006-07 saw no Domestic Violence murders in Haringey.  Wards in the east of 
the borough were by far the worst affected by Domestic Violence. Some 
contributing factors are higher levels of deprivation and high density housing.  
 
Of 1,135 referrals to Haringey’s domestic violence service, Hearthstone, in 
2006/07 192 cases involved alcohol use by the perpetrator (17%), and 42 
cases where the victim was using alcohol problematically (4%).   
 
There were 238 sexual offences in Haringey in 2006/07, and just under a 
quarter were rape with the remaining classified as ‘other sexual’, mostly sexual 
assaults.  20% (48) of all sexual offences were recorded as alcohol-related 

Page 52



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

11 

where the victim or suspect had been drinking at the time of the offence.  14% 
(26) of other sexual offences and 38% of rapes (22) were alcohol-related. 
 
For rape where alcohol was involved, a third of the victims had been drinking 
prior to the offence, and 12% of the suspects (see table below) 
 

Suspect Victim Both Total

Other sexual 8.9% 7.2% 1.7% 180

Rape 12.1% 32.8% 6.9% 58

Total 9.7% 13.4% 2.9% 238

Been drinking…

 
 

 
The wards disproportionately affected by alcohol-related violence including 
domestic and gender based violence are Tottenham Green, Noel Park, 
Northumberland Park and Tottenham Hale.  Alcohol-related violence tends to 
occur most often during the weekend and generally in the early hours of the 
morning or evening; the times when people tend to be out, or at home, drinking. 
 
 
Anti-social behaviour 
Anecdotal evidence from a June 2008 survey of Safer Neighbourhood Team 
sergeants and ward panel chairs found that the main areas of continuing 
concern are: 

• street drinking: the problems associated with street drinking are not 
new, and include intimidation, litter, noise and public urination. 

• young people drinking in public places 

• rowdiness associated with licensed premises. It should be noted that 
enforcement officers consulted as part of the strategy development felt 
that the level of problems associated with licensed premises is low 
relative to other London boroughs. 

 
Haringey ranked 8th lowest (ie 8th best) in London for percentage of residents 
saying that people being drunk and rowdy in public spaces is a problem (31%) 
in the Best Value Performance Indicators Survey 2006/07. 
 
Fire deaths 
Research for London Fire Brigade into fire deaths during 1996-2000 found that 
nearly a third of accidental dwelling fire victims had some alcohol measured in 
their bloodstream.  Haringey had the 8th highest fatality rate for accidental 
dwelling fires in London over this period, with 9.9 deaths per million population. 
 
The numbers are small, but it should be noted that alcohol intoxication is 
associated with accidental fire in general, and not just with relatively rare fatal 
fires.  People who have been drinking are more likely to cause a fire, whilst 
their ability to escape is impaired. 
 
2.2.5 Impact of alcohol misuse on children and families 
Problem drinking can affect all aspects of family functioning, with seven key 
areas of family life being adversely affected, including its social life, stable 
finances and good communication.  Relationships between family members, 

Page 53



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

12 

employment and health issues can also be adversely affected by alcohol 
misuse. Heavy drinking is also strongly correlated with conflicts, disputes and 
domestic violence and this too has a damaging effect on children. Marriages 
with alcohol problems are twice as likely to end in divorce (see Alcohol and the 
family: a position paper from Alcohol Concern www.alcoholandfamilies.org.uk). 
 
There is anecdotal evidence in Haringey that a significant proportion of carers 
misuse alcohol, perhaps as a coping mechanism.  The number of people caring 
for people with severe alcohol problems in the borough is not known. 
 
Problem drinking by parents can be disruptive to children and families. The 
problem is widespread, with up to 1.3 million children estimated to be living 
in a family with a problem drinking parent in England. Research in this area 
shows that parental problem drinking can be a source of social and emotional 
turmoil in families, which can result in both short-term distress during childhood 
and long-term distress across a wide range of areas.  Statistics suggest that 
alcohol plays a part in around a third to a quarter of known cases of child abuse 
(see Understanding Alcohol Issues for Professionals working with Parents, 
www.alcoholandfamilies.org.uk). 
 
The main risks to children associated with parental alcohol misuse are: 

• Neglect of parental responsibilities, leading to physical, emotional or 
psychological harm 

• Exposing children to unsuitable care givers or visitors 

• Use of the family resources to finance the parents’ drinking 

• Effects of alcohol which may lead to uninhibited behaviours e.g. 
inappropriate display of sexual and/or aggressive behaviour and reduced 
parental vigilance 

• Unsafe storage of alcohol thus giving children ease of access 

• Adverse impact of growth and development of an unborn child 
 
In Haringey, a number of stakeholders expressed concern about the local 
prevalence of parental alcohol misuse and its impact of on children. A 
significant proportion of cases on the child protection register have parental 
drinking as a significant factor [awaiting data].  HAGA’s children and families 
service saw 324 children in 2006/07, of whom 31 were on the child protection 
register, 26 were classed as in need and 37 were in care or looked after by the 
council.  The service took on 162 new adult clients (ie substance misusing 
parents) in 2006/07. 
 
For young people’s own use of alcohol, the government suggests in its 2008 
Youth Alcohol Action Plan that: 

• Alcohol can contribute to unacceptable behaviour by young people that 
can be a significant problem for the rest of the community, for example 
through anti-social behaviour or crime 

• Drinking at an early age can cause serious health problems, both in the 
short and the long-term. There is also new evidence that drinking too 
much alcohol can impair adolescent brain development 

• Drinking too much alcohol is strongly associated with a wide range of 
other problems which adversely affect the welfare of teenagers, for 

Page 54



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

13 

example, unprotected sex, teenage pregnancy, failing at school and the 
use of illicit drugs 

 
There is anecdotal evidence for some of this in Haringey, but it has not been 
reported as a major concern.  See section 2.2.2 above for prevalence of young 
people’s drinking and section 2.2.4 for details of young people drinking in public 
places. 
 
 

2.3 Current responses to alcohol-related harm Haringey 
There is much going on already to tackle alcohol problems in the borough.  This 
section sets out the main activities, and is not intended to be a comprehensive 
list. 
 
2.3.1 Activity to reduce alcohol-related health harm 
Alcohol is currently included where relevant in HPCT’s health promotion work, 
for example in connection with nutrition and physical activity, although the level 
of activity is limited at present. 
 
In line with Department of Health guidance2, a pilot screening and brief 
intervention project in North Middlesex A&E department and four primary care 
practices has been in place since late 2007. 
 
2.3.2 Specialist treatment 
HAGA (Haringey Advisory Group on Alcohol) is the principal specialist alcohol 
treatment service in Haringey.   HAGA offer a range of services including: 

• Individual Counselling – offering people the chance to discuss their 
problem in a confidential setting with an experienced Counsellor. 

• Community Alcohol Team – offering assessment and detoxification from 
alcohol at home and in the community.  

• Residential Detox and Residential rehabilitation 

• HAGA provides assessment for and referral to alcohol detox beds and 3 
month residential rehabilitation programmes. 

• HAGA  Centre – offers a structured day programme lasting three months 
which includes training in how to reduce  drinking and  also offering an 
alcohol-free ‘Drop-In’, group work, individual key-working and housing 
support, acupuncture and aromatherapy. 

• COSMIC - offers workshops and advice for children, parents, and other 
professionals around alcohol and substance misuse.   

• Kinesis – offers employment advice and training, helping people 
recovering from alcohol and drug problems to get back to work. 

• Project Newstart – supports 15 residents in 3 shared houses in their aim 
to remain alcohol and drug-free and be resettled into permanent 
accommodation. 

                                            
2
 Alcohol Misuse Interventions – guidance on developing a local programme of improvement 

http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/idcplg?IdcService=GET_FILE&dID=18933&Rendition=
Web 
 

Page 55



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

14 

• Community Outreach Team – works with ‘street’ drinkers and other 
groups who experience difficulty in accessing mainstream health and 
related services. 

• Domestic Violence – offers one-off confidential advice and information or 
gives long term support around legal, housing and benefits issues. 
Works closely with Hearthstone. 

• Mental Health and Housing worker - offers support to clients suffering 
from alcohol and long term mental health problems with the primary 
objective of assisting clients in maintaining their housing and reducing 
the harm caused by their drinking. 

 
In-volve works with young people under 21 in Haringey who are using drugs or 
alcohol themselves, or are affected by someone else's drug or alcohol use.  
Services offered include: 

• Confidential information and advice  

• One-to-one support / key-working  

• Complementary therapies  

• Assessment and access to medical interventions  

• Advocacy (help resolving situations with others)  

• Access to education and training 
 
Haringey’s drug services DASH and Eban work with clients who use alcohol 
alongside other drugs.   
 
Haringey’s dual diagnosis service works with patients who have alcohol 
problems and severe and enduring mental health problems. 
 
Investment in specialist alcohol services for 08/09 totals £1,002,241, broken 
down as follows: 

• Haringey TPCT: £240,133 plus 72,000 for the screening and brief 
intervention pilot 

• Haringey Social Services: £389,771 

• Haringey Supporting People: £48,866 for Newstart Project, £134,879 for 
the Resettlement Project,  £116,592 for the Day Centre Floating Support 
Outreach Workers Project (all HAGA projects) 

 
2.3.3 Activity to tackle alcohol-related crime 
Core police activity includes policing alcohol-related disorder associated with 
licensed premises, work with the licensed trade and involvement in test 
purchasing operations.  There is a targeted inspection and enforcement regime 
by police and council licensing and trading standards departments that 
concentrates on high-risk and badly-run premises.   
 
Core Probation activity includes rehabilitation of offenders with alcohol 
problems.  Haringey Community Justice Court began hearing cases in January 
2008.  The court covers the Tottenham Hale, Tottenham Green, Seven Sisters, 
Northumberland Park areas.  It deals with a wide range of offences committed 
in these areas, including alcohol-related offences. 
 

Page 56



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

15 

Hearthstone provides survivors of domestic violence in Haringey with access to 
all the support they need in one place.  The centre brings together housing 
officers, Victim Support volunteers, police Community Safety officers, and staff 
from the council's Equalities and Diversity unit.  Hearthstone and HAGA work 
together in accordance with best practice set out by the Home Office-funded 
Stella Project to support survivors of domestic violence who have alcohol 
problems. 
 
 
 
 
2.3.4 Activity to tackle alcohol-related anti-social behaviour 
The existing Designated Public Place Order (known locally as an alcohol 
control zone) was expanded from May 1st 2008 as a response to anti-social 
behaviour arising from street drinking.  In addition, a multi-agency problem-
solving group has been established to address concerns about street drinkers 
outside Wickes/Seven Sisters tube.  A further three areas are now being 
considered (as at July 2008). 
 
Safer Neighbourhood Teams have been in place across the 19 wards in the 
borough from April 2006.  The aim of these teams is to tackle anti-social 
behaviour and local problems.  Alcohol-related neighbour nuisance, neglect of 
properties and failed tenancies are common and addressed as part of for 
Homes for Haringey and registered social landlords core business. ASBAT, the 
council’s anti-social behaviour action team, deals with housing-relating anti-
social behaviour that requires input over and above what housing officers can 
provide.   
 
2.3.5 Activity to address the impact of alcohol misuse on children and 
families 
Alcohol education is provided in schools as part of PSHE (personal, social and 
health education) within the council/PCT Healthy Schools Programme. 
 
In-Volve is commissioned by the DAAT to provide specialist drug and alcohol 
harm reduction, psychosocial interventions, group work, family work, 
pharmacological intervention and access to residential treatment for young 
people aged 13 to 21 years.   
 
The Youth Offending Service is commissioned by the DAAT to provide 
specialist interventions for young people in the criminal justice system with 
substance misuse problems.  Within the Children’s Service, there is a 
substance misuse worker in the Leaving Care team.  Within adult social 
services there is a specialist substance misuse post to work with parents.  
Domestic violence is often linked with parental alcohol misuse and links are 
being developed between the Local Safeguarding Children Board and the 
Domestic Violence Strategic Partnership Board. 
 
COSMIC (a HAGA project, see 2.3.2 above) is commissioned by the DAAT to 
provide support and advice to children and families experiencing drug or 
alcohol problems.  COSMIC hold drop-in sessions that aim to build family 
relationships, and provide telephone advice and support in case conferences 

Page 57



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

16 

for parents/families as required. COSMIC involves young services users and 
has well-developed user participation processes which feed into service 
improvement for children and young people.  
 
To tackle under-age sales of alcohol, the licensing department, with trading 
standards (and the police), undertakes a rolling programme of test purchasing. 
 
 

3. Local priorities in tackling alcohol-related harm 
3.1 Gaps 
The gaps highlighted in this section have been identified by stakeholders during 
the development of the strategy, and by comparison of what is currently 
happening in Haringey against Government guidance. 
 
3.1.1 Health 
Current alcohol health promotion, screening and early intervention is very 
limited and needs to be expanded if it is to impact on reducing the rate of 
alcohol-related hospital admissions.  There is an opportunity to include alcohol 
within the remit of the PCT’s proposed Health Trainer’s scheme, and also within 
strategies for obesity and cardiovascular disease.  This should be possible 
within existing resources. 
 
This leaves a gap in alcohol-specific health promotion, ie work to raise 
awareness of sensible drinking in the general population, and also alcohol 
awareness training for generic professionals.  The figure below shows how this 
fits into the Department of Health’s Models of Care for Alcohol Misuse 
(MOCAM) – and adds as “tier 0” for universal prevention. 
 
 

Page 58



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

17 

Figure 5: applying Models of Care for Alcohol Misusers (MOCAM) to Haringey's adult 
population (16-64) 

 
 
 
 
The evidence base suggests media campaigns can raise awareness but are 
less effective at changing behaviour.  However, research also suggests people 
are largely ignorant about units of alcohol and sensible drinking limits.  The 
Government is committed to raising awareness through national campaigns, 
and there is to be a London-wide campaign in 2008.  There is no need to 
replicate these at local level, but there is an opportunity to ensure the 
information is available in the main community languages on the relevant 
partnership websites, and at key health and social-care settings.   
 
During summer 2008 it will be known if proposed funding for three new posts 
within the PCT’s public health team, including one with an alcohol remit, has 
been approved.  Similarly, proposals for a social marketing project lead by 
public health may be approved – this should include alcohol. 
 
The tier 1 pilot alcohol intervention scheme in North Middlesex A&E has a 
strong evidence base, and is part of a £3M Department of Health research 
project to test best practice.  As the research continues the pilot should evolve 
to take account of its findings, and so remain at the forefront of best practice in 
England.  Similar schemes elsewhere have been effective in reducing hospital 

Page 59



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

18 

admissions; Haringey’s scheme will make an important contribution to reducing 
the rate of alcohol-related admissions. 
 
Aside from A&E, primary care is another key setting for screening and early 
intervention.  Again, there is a strong evidence base to support this.  The pilot 
scheme with four practices is a good start, but ideally all practices would have 
the opportunity to deliver it.  In June 2008 NHS published Primary Care Service 
Framework: Alcohol Services in Primary Care3, designed to support 
commissioners, practitioners and providers in setting up alcohol interventions in 
primary care. 
 
There is currently no routine screening and early intervention happening in 
workplace or criminal justice settings.  The evidence base for this is less well-
established but good practice guidance in the government’s local alcohol 
strategy says work should be developed in these settings. 
 
For specialist treatment, stakeholders reported the following gaps in the current 
system: 

• Detox and residential rehabilitation for people with complex needs 

• Care for people with Korsakoff’s syndrome (although the numbers are 
low) 

• Housing for people in treatment  

• Aftercare (limited to HAGA drop-ins) 

• Alcohol interventions in the criminal justice system (pre-court) 

• Assertive outreach to support housing officers and carers 

• Services for older people with alcohol problems 
 
In terms of capacity of specialist treatment, estimates of need using the Rush 
Model4 indicate that a reasonable level of provision would have capacity to treat 
15% of the in-need population (defined as harmful and dependent drinkers) 
each year.  This would mean, for example, capacity for: 

• 909 assessments per year 

• 545 community detoxes (there were 68 in 2006/07) 

• counselling for 381 people (83 had counselling in 2006/07) 

• day care for 207 people (296 in 06/07) 

• in-patient detox for 54  

• residential and move-on for 165  
 
Clearly, this indicates a significant lack of capacity across the system (with the 
exception of day care). 
 
To determine how important these gaps are, there should be a review of the 
treatment system as whole to ensure there is an appropriate balance of 
evidence-based interventions across the so-called four tiers of intervention, to 

                                            
3
 

http://www.primarycarecontracting.nhs.uk/uploads/primary_care_service_frameworks/primary_
care_service_framework_-_alcohol_v9_final.pdf 
4
 The Rush Model is the best established method of estimating capacity.  Rush B (1990) A 

systems approach to estimating the required capacity of alcohol treatment services, British 
Journal of Addiction 85(1) p49-59 

Page 60



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

19 

ensure there is a clinical governance framework and to ensure it meets the 
needs of local communities.  To date, investment has focused primarily on tier 
3 treatment, for a relatively narrow band of the population.  A commissioning 
framework is needed that will: align the various funding streams across health, 
social care, housing and the criminal justice system; establish a formal 
commissioning cycle that includes assessment of need; and set out 
commissioning roles for the DAAT, PCT, Social Services etc as appropriate. 
 
 
3.1.2 Community safety 
There are no major gaps apparent in current responses to alcohol-related crime 
and anti-social behaviour (ASB) but the various partnerships and agencies 
involved would benefit from: 

• better data  

• better understanding of the drinking culture and needs of diverse 
communities 

• training in the various tools and powers available 

• protocols for license reviews 

• more input from and joint working with specialist alcohol workers 
(resources permitting) 

 
Lack of data on alcohol-related ASB is not confined to Haringey, but it does 
limit how effectively partners can deal with tackling problems.  Recent changes 
to various legislation covering anti-social behaviour and licensing mean that 
police and council enforcement agencies now have a wide range of powers to 
tackle problem premises, street drinking and other alcohol-related ASB.  
Training is needed so that these powers are used as effectively as possible.   
 
In conjunction with the training there should be agreed protocols on the use of 
key enforcement powers such as the license review, so that procedures are 
triggered automatically when certain criteria are met (eg two underage sales). 
 
Safer Neighbourhood teams and housing officers routinely come across 
drinkers who are causing anti-social behaviour in one way or another but who 
are unlikely to accept help with their drinking.  It may be that specialist outreach 
workers could work alongside ASB colleagues to help minimise the impact of 
this behaviour. 
 
 
3.1.3 Children and families 
In 2006 the Children’s Service and Haringey Community Police Consultative 
Group (HCPCG) jointly organised a conference to learn young people’s views 
on tackling issues of safety.   In a workshop on drugs and alcohol, young 
people said that drugs education lessons (which cover drugs and alcohol), were 
excellent for knowledge, exploring attitudes, harm minimization and role plays 
which synthesise drug situations.   
 
However, a strong point to emerge was that drug education should be included 
in other areas of the curriculum, besides PSHE and not treated as an isolated 
subject.  Unfortunately drug education is not currently part of the statutory 

Page 61



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

20 

curriculum and it is difficult to change the situation in Haringey without policy 
change at national level. 
 
A number of young people felt that their parents were out of touch with the 
problems that young people encounter in our society and it was suggested that 
it would be a good idea to set up parent groups to develop drug awareness.   
 
Haringey’s strategy will address education for children and parents, and take 
into account the Department for Children, Schools and Families’ 2008 Youth 
Alcohol Action Plan with respect to parental responsibility.  A scrutiny review of 
drug education for children commenced in June 2008, and its findings should 
inform the strategy action plan. 
 
Addressing alcohol misuse in children and families now falls within the remit of 
Children’s Services.  As the new Children’s Network and Children’s Centres 
develop in Haringey, it will be important to ‘mainstream’ alcohol within them, 
albeit with support initially from the DAAT.  There needs to be routine 
awareness training (on how to spot parental drinking and where to refer 
parents) for all professionals whose focus is the child. 
 
There were 19 test purchases for underage sales of alcohol in 2007/08 as part 
of rolling programme by police and Trading Standards.  There were 4 sales 
(21%) and all led to prosecution. 
 
 
3.1.4 Community engagement 
A number of stakeholders highlighted the need for a better understanding of the 
needs of certain communities with respect to their alcohol use.  This includes 
the visible minority of new communities of economic migrants who drink 
outside, communities where drinkers are stigmatised and may find it difficult to 
seek help, older people, and carers. 
 
The borough has various mechanisms in place for consulting with and 
engaging the community, and these should be used as appropriate to inform 
the ongoing work of the strategy.  Individuals and organisations who were 
consulted during the drafting of the strategy are listed at Appendix 1. 
 
However, there also needs to be pro-active community development work.  
Treatment agencies are not currently resourced to undertake all the work 
necessary to raise the profile of alcohol within diverse communities nor to 
understand the alcohol-related needs of community groups. A specialist 
function may need to be created to achieve this first step.  
 
Specialist alcohol outreach work may then need to be developed and targeted 
where it is most needed. Joint working with community groups is likely to be 
more successful if the alcohol is already firmly on the agenda. Capacity 
building, involving training and the employment of people from within 
communities to undertake alcohol-related work, can run alongside this. 
 

Page 62



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

21 

3.2 Priorities 
Based on the evidence of alcohol-related harm in Haringey, the views of 
stakeholders and analysis of gaps in the current response, the priorities for the 
strategy are as follows: 

• Developing a commissioning framework for alcohol treatment, to include 
early interventions and clinical governance 

• Developing datasets to inform action on alcohol-related harm 

• Improving the enforcement and coordination of existing tools and powers 
to address alcohol-related ASB  

• Addressing the impact of parental alcohol misuse on children and 
families 

 
 

3.3 Strategic aims and objectives 
The overarching strategic aim is: 
 
To minimise the health harms, violence and anti-social behaviour associated 
with alcohol, while ensuring that people are able to enjoy alcohol safely and 
responsibly. 
 
Objectives of the strategy are: 

i. To reduce alcohol-related crime, especially violent crime, and 
anti-social behaviour by: 

• Improving data and intelligence  

• Training enforcement agencies in new powers 

• Establishing a programme of joint enforcement activity targeted at 
problem premises 

• Developing a multi-agency approach to street drinking 
 

ii. To reduce the levels of chronic and acute ill-health caused by 
alcohol, resulting in fewer alcohol-related accidents and 
hospital admissions by: 

• Developing a commissioning framework for alcohol treatment 

• Exploring alcohol issues for older people 

• Developing targeted interventions to reduce hospital admissions 
related to alcohol 

• Training council and other staff in alcohol-awareness 
 

iii. To prevent alcohol-related harm to children and young people 
by: 

• Implementing the findings of the scrutiny review into young 
people’s substance misuse 

• Developing child protection protocols for parental drinking cases 

• Training workers in identifying parental drinking and signposting 
  

iv. To raise awareness of sensible drinking by: 

• Implementing an alcohol prevention programme 

• Mainstreaming alcohol in health promotion activity 

Page 63



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

22 

 
 
4. Implementation of the strategy 
4.1 Strategic framework for implementing the alcohol strategy 
The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) sets the main priorities for public 
services in Haringey.  Five thematic partnership boards are tasked with co-
ordinating the delivery of the Haringey Strategic Partnership's priorities. The 
thematic boards are: 

• Children and Young People Strategic Partnership 

• Better Places 

• Enterprise  

• Well-Being 

• Haringey Safer Communities Partnership 
 
Alcohol misuse impacts to some extent on the work of all the boards, but the 
strongest links to the alcohol strategy are with the Children and Young People, 
Well-being and Safer Communities Partnerships.   
 
Until the implementation of this strategy, the main areas of activity specifically 
aimed at reducing alcohol-related harm were enforcement, lead by the police 
and Haringey council, and specialist treatment, lead by the DAAT.  Both fell 
within the remit of Haringey Safer Communities Partnership.  Now, with the 
adoption of a target within the Local Area Agreement to reduce the rate of 
alcohol-related hospital admissions, responsibility for an important strand of the 
strategy falls to the Well-being Partnership Board.   
 
Commissioning responsibility for children and young people’s substance 
misuse services transferred from the DAAT to the Children and Young People 
Services in April 2008, therefore the Children and Young People Strategic 
Partnership will have responsibility for activity in the strategy aimed at reducing 
the impact of alcohol on children and families.   
 
Activity to reduce alcohol-related crime and anti-social behaviour will be 
delivered by boards that sit under and report into the Safer Communities 
Partnership (via the Safer Communities Executive Board, SCEB).  The diagram 
below shows the interrelationship between the different boards and 
partnerships involved. 
 

Page 64



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

23 

 
 
 
An alcohol strategy group, reporting into the DAAT, will have oversight of all the 
various strands of activity, and will have responsibility for ensuring the activity is 
coordinated and for evaluating the overall effectiveness of the strategy. 
 
 
The alcohol strategy ties into a number of key partnership strategies and plans, 
see Appendix 1. 
 
 

4.2 Action plan 
The action plan to support and fulfil the objectives of this strategy is available 
as a separate document, see [web address] 

 
 
5. Monitoring, evaluation and review of the strategy 
5.1 Monitoring and evaluation 
Actions within the strategy are incorporated into the action plans of various 
boards that report into the HSP via its thematic partnerships (see 4.1 above).  
The existing performance management and monitoring structures within those 
partnerships will monitor and evaluate the individual activities and initiatives 
they are responsible for. 
 

Page 65



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

24 

However, the strategy has many strands of activity that support and 
complement each other.  The DAAT’s alcohol strategy group will evaluate the 
strategy as a whole by considering its overall effectiveness. 
 
At political level, the cabinet member for Enforcement and Safer Communities 
and the Chief Executive of Haringey Teaching PCT will ensure delivery of the 
strategy. 
 
 

5.2 Review of the strategy 
The implementation plan will be reviewed annually by the DAAT’s alcohol 
strategy group, and adjusted accordingly.  The review will take account of: 

• evaluation of  effectiveness (see 5.1 above) 

• new or changing local priorities 

• Government policy and developments through the national alcohol 
strategy  

 
This review process is included in the strategy action plan. 

Page 66



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

25 

Appendix 1: strategies and plans that link to the alcohol 
strategy 
 
Plan Relevant objective/target 

Sustainable Community 
Strategy 2007-16 

Safer for all; Healthier people with a better quality of life 

Local Area Agreement  NI 21: Dealing with local concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime by the local council and police  
(improvement target) 
NI 39: Alcohol-related hospital admissions (improvement 
target) 
NI 195: Improved street and environmental cleanliness 
(levels of graffiti, litter, detritus and fly-posting) 
Local target: Repeat victimisation of domestic violence 
(2007-2010 stretch target)  
Local target: Number of accidental dwelling fires (2007 –
2010 stretch target) 

Safer for All, Haringey’s 
Community Safety 
Partnership Plan (2008 – 
2011) 

tba 

Domestic and Gender 
Based Violence Strategy  
2008-12 

Improve the support and safety of those who experience 
or are threatened by Domestic or Gender Based Violence.  
 

Licensing Policy 2008 Promotion of licensing objectives 
Well-being Plan 2007-10 Promote healthy living and reduce health inequalities 

(Reduce the harm caused by drugs and alcohol) 
Obesity Strategy 
2007-10 (in development) 

tba 

Experience Counts 2005-
10 

Staying healthy 

Day Opportunities Plan 
(in development) 

tba 

Joint Health And Social 
Care Mental Health 
Strategy 
2005 –2008 (new 
strategy in development) 

Ensure that all mental health service users who 
significantly abuse drugs or alcohol receive appropriate 
and skilled assessment and treatment services 

Housing Strategy 2003-
08 

Improve community safety, sustainability and cohesion in 
our most deprived communities and create opportunities 
for people to achieve and succeed 

Homelessness Strategy 
2003-08 

To ensure that there is an integrated response to 
homelessness in Haringey and that agencies work 
together to provide services to promote the well being of 
individuals in the community. 
To achieve a reliable and comprehensive knowledge and 
information system as a basis for delivering our 
homelessness strategy. 

Changing Lives (The 
children and young 
people’s plan) 2006-09 

Reduce alcohol and drug misuse amongst young people 
together with the effects of parental alcohol and drug 
misuse on children and young people 

 

Page 67



APPENDIX 1 
 
Haringey alcohol harm reduction strategy 2008-11 
Draft v7 

26 

Appendix 2: Glossary 
 
 
ASB Anti-social behaviour 
ASBAT anti-social behaviour action team 
AUDIT Alcohol use disorder test 
BAC blood alcohol concentration 
BEH Barnet, Enfield, Haringey (mental health trust) 

CDP Community drug project 
DAAT Drug and alcohol action team 
GHS General Household Survey  
HAGA  Haringey Advisory Group on Alcohol 
HAVCO Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations 
HES Hospital Episode Statistics 
HPCT Haringey Primary Care Trust 

HMCR Her Majesty’s Customs and Revenue 
HTPCT Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust 
LBH London Borough of Haringey 
MOCAM Models of Care for Alcohol Misuse  
NI National Indicator 
NWPHO North West Public Health Observatory 

ONS Office of National Statistics 
PSA Public Service Agreement  
PSHE Personal, social and health education 
SCEB Safer Communities Executive Board 
SOAs Super Output Areas  
SNT Safer Neighbourhood Team 

 

Page 68



1
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

X
 2

 
 A

L
C

O
H

O
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
0
8
/9

  
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

s
  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 
L

e
a
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 l

e
a
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h

e
n

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o

r 
s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 

R
e
la

te
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 b

o
a
rd

 

Progress 
(RAG) 

Y
P

1
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
fi
n
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
8

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 d

ru
g
 a

n
d
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
in

to
 t
h

e
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
 T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

D
A

A
T

  
Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
r 

0
9
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

w
h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 

Y
P

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

N
I 
1
1

1
: 
F

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d

 1
0
-

1
7
  

N
I 
1
1

2
: 
U

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 
N

I 
1
1

3
: 

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 i
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

2
0
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

Y
P

2
 

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 
is

 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 e

.g
. 
to

 
P

C
T

, 
Y

O
S

, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

P
o
lic

e
 P

u
b

lic
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 D

e
s
k
 

D
A

A
T

/ 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
/ 
D

e
p
u

ty
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
H

A
G

A
 

M
a
r 

0
9
 

  

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
  

L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
’ 

B
o
a
rd

 

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

Y
P

3
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

c
lu

s
te

r-
b
a
s
e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n

 P
S

H
E

 

P
S

H
E

 a
d
v
is

o
rs

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
A

A
T

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

N
I 
1
1

1
: 
F

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d

 1
0
-

1
7
  

N
I 
1
1

2
: 
U

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 
N

I 
1
1

3
: 

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 i
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

2
0
 y

e
a
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

Page 69



2
 R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

s
  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 
L

e
a
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 l

e
a
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h

e
n

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o

r 
s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 

R
e
la

te
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 b

o
a
rd

 

Progress 
(RAG) 

o
ld

s
 

Y
P

4
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
v
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
it
h
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (

fa
it
h
 f

o
ru

m
) 

in
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
d
ri

n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 

s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
. 
 A

S
B

A
T

’s
 

p
a
re

n
ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
. 
  
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/ 
 

C
O

S
M

IC
 

 

 
S

e
e
 H

1
2
 

D
A

A
T

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

Y
P

5
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

lin
e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 

C
&

Y
P

S
 i
n
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
 i
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

ig
n
 -

p
o
s
ti
n

g
 

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(C
Y

P
S

M
C

) 
C

O
S

M
IC

 

 
C

o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Y
P

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

 
 

 

Y
P

6
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 (

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

) 
b

y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 Y
o
u
n

g
 P

e
rs

o
n
s
 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 f

o
r 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(C
Y

P
S

M
C

) 
 

o
n
g
o

in
g
 

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Y
P

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
h
e
m

e
 

s
u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 

Y
P

7
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o

l 
a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
d
e

liv
e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

P
S

H
E

)?
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(C
Y

P
S

M
C

) 
o
n
g
o

in
g
 

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Y
P

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

 
 

 

Y
P

8
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Y
P

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 
a
n
d
 

 

Page 70



3
 R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

s
  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 
L

e
a
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 l

e
a
d

 o
ff

ic
e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h

e
n

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o

r 
s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 

R
e
la

te
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 b

o
a
rd

 

Progress 
(RAG) 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
. 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p
 

y
o

u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

. 

   R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
h

a
rm

 

  W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 

 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 

L
e

a
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 l

e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a

m
e

 

W
h

e
n

 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

i
p

 o
r 

s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 

R
e

la
te

d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
  

b
o

a
rd

 

Progress 
(RAG) 

H
1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
, 
h
e
a

lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
, 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

g
e
n

e
ri
c
 

h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
a
n
d

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

k
e

y 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 (

u
s
in

g
 M

O
S

A
IC

 a
s
 

o
n
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
s
e
).

  
 

J
o
in

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/ 

n
e

w
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
t?

 

A
p
ri

l 
0

9
 

£
2
1
k
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

fr
o
m

 D
A

A
T

; 
a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
£

1
0
k
 

n
e
e
d

e
d
 f

ro
m

 P
C

T
 

D
A

A
T

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
b
o
a
rd

 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

e
.g

. 
o
b
e
s
it
y
) 

a
n

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 (

e
.g

. 
h
e

a
lt
h
 t
ra

in
e
rs

) 

J
o
in

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
A

A
T

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
b
o
a
rd

 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

Page 71



4
 

H
3
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
a
lc

o
h
o

l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
, 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.
 

  

P
C

T
/D

A
A

T
 J

C
M

 
B

y
 D

e
c
 

0
8
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
  

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
4
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
lc

o
h
o

l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

P
C

T
/ 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
H

A
G

A
/C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

P
s
y
c
h
ia

tr
is

t 
B

E
H

 M
H

T
 

 

B
y
  

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
8
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
  

 
D

A
A

T
 

T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

T
a
s
k
 

S
u
b

g
ro

u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
5
 

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 d
ru

g
 a

n
d
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
d
e
to

x
 f

o
r 

p
o

ly
 d

ru
g
 u

s
e
rs

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

D
A

S
H

/ 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
H

A
G

A
 /

 D
A

A
T

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

 
C

o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
ra

w
n
 f

ro
m

 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
d

e
to

x
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 
(s

a
v
in

g
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll)
 

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

 
W

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
6
 

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
lc

o
h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

P
C

T
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

B
y
  

O
c
to

b
e
r 

 
0
8
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

 
N

I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
7
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 (

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

) 
b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
P

e
rs

o
n
s
 s

u
b

g
ro

u
p

 (
fo

r 
a
d
u
lt
s
) 

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 
 

A
p
ri

l 
0

9
 

 •
 

fl
o
a
ti
n

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
to

 
h
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 

lo
n

g
 t
e
rm

 
d
ri
n
k
in

g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 –

 
u
s
in

g
 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 

S
P

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
-

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s

s
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 G
E

T
 T

A
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
/ 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 

 

Page 72



5
 

te
c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 

•
 

2
w

o
rk

e
rs

 
(2

@
 £

4
0
k
  

O
r 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ri
n

g
 

S
P

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
th

is
 c

a
n

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

H
8
 

P
re

p
a
re

 a
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
to

 r
e
s
e

a
rc

h
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n

g
e

y
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 f
u
n
d

in
g
 t
o
 

c
a
rr

y 
th

is
 o

u
t.
  

L
in

k
s
 i
n
to

 P
C

T
 f
a
lls

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
A

g
e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 
M

a
rc

h
 

0
9
 

 
 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
9
 

A
n
a

ly
s
e

 a
lc

o
h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 h

o
s
p
it
a

l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 d

a
ta

  
(H

E
S

) 
fo

r:
 p

ro
fi
le

 
o
f 

p
a
ti
e

n
ts

 (
a
g

e
, 
g

e
n
d

e
r,

 e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

w
a
rd

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
);

 p
a
tt
e
rn

s
 o

f 
re

p
e
a
t 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

i.
e
. 

w
h

ic
h
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
s
t 

re
p
e
a
ts

);
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 o

f 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

i.
e
. 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 

a
re

 m
o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t)

 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h
  

D
A

A
T

  
D

e
c
 0

8
 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
0
k
 

n
e
e
d

e
d
 f

ro
m

 P
C

T
 

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
1
0
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

. 
 (

T
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

a
rd

-b
a
s
e

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
; 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

lia
is

o
n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a

ys
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 a
n
d
 

b
ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
t-

p
a

ti
e
n

t 
c
lin

ic
s
; 
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

, 
d
a

ta
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

&
E

 a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 r

e
 v

io
le

n
c
e
-r

e
la

te
d
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
) 

P
C

T
/D

A
A

T
 

F
e
b
 0

8
 

C
o
s
ts

 d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

 [i
n
d

ic
a
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
ts

: 

•
 

£
7
2
k
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

b
ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

lia
is

o
n
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 (
s
e
e
 

L
iv

e
rp

o
o
l 

L
if
e
s
ty

le
 

te
a
m

) 
 2

 
b
a
n
d

 7
 

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

Page 73



6
 

n
u
rs

e
s
 @

 
£
5
0
k
; 
0
.5

 
a
d
m

in
@

 
£
1
5
k
 =

 £
1

1
5
k
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
a
ta

 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 

W
h
it
ti
n
g
to

n
 

£
2
k
 f

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

(a
s
s
u
m

e
s
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 w
ill

 
fu

n
d
 

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 

N
o
rt

h
 M

id
) 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 

E
n
h

a
n
c
e
d

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 
£
2
0
0
k
 

(1
0
/1

1
)]

 

H
1
1
 

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 b

ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 p

ilo
t 

a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

D
A

A
T

/H
A

G
A

 
F

e
b
 0

8
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
A

A
T

 (
J
C

G
) 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
1
2
 

T
ra

in
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i
n
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

  

A
d
u

lt
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

  

 
V

ia
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 
 £
2
0
k
 f

o
r 

4
0
 h

a
lf
 

d
a

y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

(8
0
0
 t
ra

in
e

e
s
) 

 
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 

N
I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
V

S
C

2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

W
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 

 

H
1
3
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
  
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

A
d
u

lt
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 
 

1
0
0
k
 

D
A

A
T

  
N

I 
3
9
 a

n
d

 
 

 

Page 74



7
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
c
a
re

 f
o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 

C
u
lt
u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 (
0
9
/1

0
) 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
i

n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 

V
S

C
2
6
: 

A
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

    R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 

C
S

1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a

lc
o
h
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 S

a
fe

. 
S

e
n
s
ib

le
. 
S

o
c
ia

l.
 T

o
o
lk

it
 

p
lu

s
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 d

a
ta

 (
p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 s

u
rv

e
ys

 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 m

o
s
t 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 a

lc
o

h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 v

io
le

n
c
e
).

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

T
e
a
m

 
M

a
r 

0
9
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
t 

C
ri
m

e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 

 

C
S

2
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
lc

o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

A
S

B
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

. 
S

e
n
s
ib

le
. 

S
o
c
ia

l.
 T

o
o
lk

it
 p

lu
s
 d

a
ta

 
g
a
th

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
w

id
e
r 

n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 
d
ri

n
k
e
rs

* 
a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

ri
n

k
 i
n
 

p
u
b

lic
 p

la
c
e
s
. 
 A

ls
o

 u
s
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 H
7
 

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

T
e
a
m

 
 

A
p
ri

l 
0

9
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

A
S

B
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 p
o

w
e
rs

 t
o

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
S

B
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
N

I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

S
C

E
B

 
 

Page 75



8
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

lc
o
h
o

l-
re

la
te

d
 A

S
B

 
 

ty
p

e
 e

v
e
n

t,
 

£
2
.5

k
 

B
o
a
rd

 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

C
S

4
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 

(r
o
lli

n
g
) 

to
p
 t

e
n
 p

ro
b
le

m
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

A
S

B
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

5
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 j
o
in

t 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

to
c
o
l 
fo

r 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 
M

a
r 

0
9
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

A
S

B
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

6
 

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
z
o

n
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 a

ll 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
re

 c
le

a
r 

a
b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 p

o
w

e
rs

; 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

T
e
a
m

 
H

A
G

A
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 e

tc
 

 

J
u
n
e
 0

9
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

  

A
S

B
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

/D
A

A
T

 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
a
n

ti
-

S
C

E
B

 
 

Page 76



9
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 (

H
A

G
A

, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

tc
);

 C
C

T
V

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

z
o
n

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

is
s
u
e
s
; 

  In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

lc
o
h

o
l 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 

Z
o
n
e
s
  
to

 b
e
 c

le
a
r,

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 (

e
g
g
 

le
a
fl
e
ts

/c
a
rd

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a
d

ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
, 

 e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
c
a
n

 b
e
 f

a
ta

l)
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
o
lic

e
  

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

C
S

7
 

In
te

g
ra

te
 f

ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
to

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 f

ir
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

w
h
e
re

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 –

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 r

e
d
u
c
e

 
a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
 f

ir
e
  

F
ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
m

m
a
n
d
e
r 

 
D

A
A

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

P
ri
n
te

d
 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 £
8
0

0
 

A
S

B
 b

o
a
rd

 
L
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t:

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d

w
e
lli

n
g
 f

ir
e
s
 

(2
0
0
7
 –

2
0

1
0
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

8
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 o
f 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 i
n
to

 d
ru

g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 

w
o
rk

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o
l 
a
rr

e
s
t 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

D
A

A
T

/H
A

G
A

/ 
P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

 
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

(C
ri
m

in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 £

5
0
 

(s
e
e
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 
p
ilo

t)
) 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t:

 
R

e
p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 

(2
0
0
7
-2

0
1
0
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

9
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 o
f 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 

a
t 
H

e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
 b

y
 a

n
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 
a

n
d
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

w
o
rk

e
r 

H
A

G
A

/H
e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 T

e
a
m

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

C
o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t:

 
R

e
p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 

(2
0
0
7
-2

0
1
0
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

1
0
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
u
rv

iv
o
rs

 o
f 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 S

te
lla

 
p
ro

je
c
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 t
o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 

m
is

u
s
e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 f

ro
n
tl
in

e
 

 H
e
a
rt

h
s
to

n
e
 

 O
n
g
o
in

g
 

£
1
.5

k
 

(a
d
v
a

n
c
e
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

1
0
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

) 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

V
io

le
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t:

 
R

e
p
e

a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 

S
C

E
B

 
 

Page 77



1
0

 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
(2

0
0
7
-2

0
1
0
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t)

 

C
S

1
1
 

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
h
a
rm

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

u
it
a

b
ly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
b
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u

p
 

 
C

o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

 
 

S
C

E
B

 
 

C
S

1
2
 

 T
o
 a

d
o
p
t 
a
re

a
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

/p
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
re

la
te

d
 A

S
B

 /
e
n

v
ir
o

n
-

c
ri
m

e
/c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

T
e
a
m

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

 
C

o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

 
P

u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

S
C

E
B

 
 

  

Page 78



1 

 
 
Meeting:  Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
 
Date:    25 September 2008 
 
Report Title: Performance Monitoring:  Local Area Agreement & 

National Indicator Set - Quarter 1 Report (April to June 
2008/09) 

 
Report of:  Sharon Shoesmith, Director The Children & Young 

People’s Service 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
The following report includes the Performance Indicators for the first Quarter 
and the guidance on performance management for Theme Boards.   
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the CYPSP notes and comments on the performance.  

 
 
Financial/Legal Comments 
 
N/A 
 
 
For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Patricia Walker 
Title  Policy & Partnerships Officer 
Tel:   020 8489 4694 
Email address:  patricia.walker@haringey.gov.uk  
 
 
 
1 Introduction  
 
1.1 Members of the CYPSP will recall that the HSP was developing a new 

performance management process in response to the new Local Area 
Agreement (LAA).  Today’s report is the first performance report to the 
CYPSP using the new format.    

 

Agenda Item 11Page 79



2 

1.2 The report gives the information for the first quarter, from April to June 
2008.  Many of the indicators are unable to show information for quarter 
one because either they are new indicators so information is only now in 
the process of being collected, or they will only be collected once a 
year.  For example, educational performance data is only updated once 
a year as the exam and SATs results become available.  Members will 
be aware that the provisional exam and SATs  results were  published 
during the summer but too late for inclusion in quarter one.  As results 
may be challenged by individual children or schools the final results are 
not available until later in the year.   

 
1.3 The indicators have been colour coded to link them to the five Every 

Child Matters Outcomes, as described in Changing Lives.   
 
1.4 Indicators marked “LAA Lead” are one of the 35 improvement targets in 

the HSP’s Local Area Agreement.  Those marked “LAA Local Lead” are 
indicators that the HSP has agreed will have local targets set as part of 
the Local Area Agreement but will not be part of the 35 monitored by 
Government.  Cross cutting indicators are those lead by another theme 
board, but are included in the CYPSP set as they may be of interest to 
the CYPSP.   

 
2 Performance 
 
2.1 Overall performance for quarter one is good with one red indicator.    
 
2.2 Performance in social care continues to be at a high level.  Core 

assessments (NI 60) remain in the top banding, reaching 85%;  the year 
to date position is 88% against a target of 86%, compared to the 
2006/07 average for our Statistical Neighbours of 79%.  Initial 
assessments (NI 59) also remain in the top banding of 81%;  the year to 
date position is 85% against a target of 86%.  The move of the referral 
and assessment services to a joint location and changes in 
administrative systems to monitor both teams as they have come 
together has had a slight impact on performance in June and July but 
this will be rectified through the remainder of the year.  Reviews of 
children in care and child protection cases (NI 66 & NI 67) also remain 
at a very high level of 99% and 100% respectively.   

 
2.3 Information is available for two of the three original stretch targets; 

young people who are NEET and schools achieving healthy schools 
status.  The percentage of young people aged 16-18 who are NEET (NI 
117) continues to decrease to 8.4% against a target of 11% and this is 
an improvement from the outturn for 2007/08 of 10.4%.  The percentage 
of schools achieving healthy schools status in 2007/08 was 66%,  
above the target of 60%.  This quarter shows a further rise to 68%.  The 
third stretch target is the achievement of a level 2 qualification at the 
age of 19 (NI 79).  Data on this is only available on an annual basis.   

 
2.4 There is one indicator at red.  This is the prevalence of Chlamydia in 

under 25 year olds (NI 113).  The target is to screen 17% of young 
people aged 15-25.  However only 3.5% has been screened, which is 

Page 80



3 

below the target and little changed from the figures for quarter three in 
2007/08.  A number of activities are in place to increase the numbers 
being screened:  

• partnership work between health services and the Haringey Youth 
Service to provide training to all Youth Workers by September 2008;   

• 35 Haringey GPs are currently part of the Chlamydia Screening 
Incentive;  

• work with local laboratories to identify Chlamydia tests undertaken 
outside the CSP and GUM Pilot;   

• a 4YP PLUS clinic is established for women aged under 20 in Lordship 
Lane Health Centre which offers a combined sexual and reproductive 
health services weekly walk in service;  

• the 4YP Contraceptive Nurse is providing screening to all clients;  

• discussion with Sports and Leisure Co-ordinators within Haringey Local 
Authority around screening opportunities within Leisure Centres;  

• working closely with Haringey Teenage Pregnancy Co-ordinator to 
provide stronger links with Haringey Schools;   

• a Chlamydia advertisement on Tottenham Hotspur’s website to 
encourage web requests for testing.  

 
 
 
s:\cs\dirf\allf\delivery and performance\cypsp\supporting material\2008\performance sept 08 
v2.doc 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Quarterly Performance Review - 2008/09 Q1
Outcome 1 – Be Healthy Outcome 2 – Stay Safe

Outcome 3 – Enjoy and Achieve Outcome 4 – Making a Positive Contribution

Outcome 5 – Achieve Economic Well-being

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Children and Young People
Top Quartile NI 51

LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Top Quartile NI 54 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Top Quartile NI 56 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

23.8%

Top Quartile NI 112 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

62.5% (2007 

quarter 1)

Top Quartile NI 113 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Red

3.3 (3rd quarter 

07/08)%
3.5%

Top Quartile NI 117

LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Green Green

10.4% 8.4% 8.4%

Top Quartile NI 116 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health (CAMHs) services 

13

Annual collection via CAMHS mapping exercise.  Good performance is high.

Services for disabled children

Will not be collected until 2009/10

Obesity among primary school age children in Year 6
24%

Data available in quarter 2

Under 18 conception rate 
59%

Annual.  Latest data is for 2007 quarter one

Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 25 year olds 
17%

Target refers to percentage of young people being screened. .   

16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, training or employment (NEET) 

11%

Proportion of children in poverty 
34.5%

New indicator monitored annually

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 1

Page 83



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

36.4 (06/07 

provisional)%

Top Quartile NI 126 LAA
Target Lead
Comment

Top Quartile NI 60
LAA

SN = 79 Target Lead
Comment

Green Green

84.0% 85.0% 88.0%

Top Quartile NI 53a LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

Top Quartile NI 53b LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

Top Quartile LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

82% 06/07, 55% 

07/08

Top Quartile NI 198a 

LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

20.8%

Top Quartile NI 198b

LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

4.8%

Top Quartile NI 79 LAA Local
73 Target Lead

Early access for women to maternity services 
50%

New indicator

Core assessments for children’s social care that were carried out within 35 

working days of their commencement
86%

Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks from birth
50%

New indicator, systems not yet in place to monitor. Government guidance suggests 

target will be measured by Q4 performance

Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks from birth (Coverage)
85%

New indicator, systems not yet in place to monitor. Government guidance suggests 

target will be measured by Q4 performance

Increase in the % of Children immunised by 2nd birthday
80%

Low confidence in 07/08 figures due to CHSS issues

Primary Children travelling to school – mode of travel usually used % by Car

19.5%

Annual collection

Secondary Children travelling to school – mode of travel usually used % by Car

4.8%

Annual collection

Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 
68%

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 2

Page 84



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Comment

66.0%

Top Quartile LAA Local
Target Lead
Comment

Green Green

66.0% 68.0% 68.0%

Top Quartile NI 175 Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Top Quartile NI 35 Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Top Quartile NI 111 Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

baseline 2006 - 

450, 2007 - 373

Top Quartile Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Top Quartile

Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Top Quartile NI 8 Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Top Quartile NI 123 Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Annual collection

Number of schools achieving healthy schools status
75%

Access to services and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling 

Indicator under development

Building resilience to violent extremism
2 (baseline is 1)

Annual collection

First time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10 – 17 
Targets not yet agreed

Victim Support services for children and young people
10% increase

Baseline 1403

Number of registered Haringey Guarantee participants with a completed better off 

calculation

Targets will be set once the contracts for the Haringey Guarantee and North London 

Pledge have been formally signed off

Adult participation in sport
Local = 24.9  LAA = 22.9

No data available.  Annual survey data due November 2009

16+ current smoking rate prevalence 
1008

No data available

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 3

Page 85



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Top Quartile NI 135

Cross
Target Cutting
Comment

Green Green

21.0% 21.0%

Top Quartile NI 109 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

17

Top Quartile NI 110 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 114 Not LAA
0.1 Target 

Comment

0.07%

Top Quartile NI 115 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 147 Not LAA
SN = 91.3 Target 

Comment

Green Green

91.9% 96.0% 96.0%

Top Quartile NI 148 Not LAA
SN = 0.85 Target 

Comment

Green Amber

68.0% 83.0% 74.0%

Top Quartile NI 50 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 52 Not LAA

Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, or 

advice and information 

14%

New indicator

Number of Sure Start Children Centres 

Targets in process of negotiation with DCSF

Young people’s participation in positive activities 

Annual collection via the TellUs survey

Rate of permanent exclusions from school 
0.06%

Annual collection

Substance misuse by young people 

Annual collection via the TellUs survey

Care leavers in suitable accommodation 
95%

Care leavers in employment, education or training 
75%

This is cumulative indicator over 12 months.  Percentages vary each month depending 

on the number of care leavers who reach their 19th birthday in the month. 

Emotional health of children

New indicator.  Annual collection via the TellUs survey

Take up of school lunches

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 4

Page 86



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 55 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 57 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 58 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 59

Not LAA
SN = 58.9 Target 

Comment

Green Green

88.0% 81.0% 85.0%

Top Quartile NI 61
Not LAA

SN = 64 Target 

Comment

Green Green

63.6% 100.0% 100.0%

Top Quartile NI 62 Not LAA
SN = 12 Target 

Comment

Amber Amber

15.0% 13.0% 13.0%

Top Quartile NI 63 Not LAA
SN = 66.9 Target 

Comment

Amber Amber

62.7% 61.0% 61.0%

Top Quartile NI 64 Not LAA
Sn = 6.4 Target 

New indicator.  Annual collection via survey to be carried out by the School Food Trust

Obesity among primary school age children in Reception Year
13%

Annual collection. Data will be avilable in quarter 2

Children and young people’s participation in high-quality PE and sport

No collection until 2009/10

Emotional and behavioural health of children in care

New indicator.  Annual collection via survey with carers

Initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 7 working days of 

referral

88%

Stability of looked after children adopted following an agency decision that the 

child should be placed for adoption
75%

Good performance is high

Stability of placements of looked after children: number of moves
12%

Good performance is low

Stability of placements of looked after children: length of placement
67%

Good performance is high

Child protection plans lasting 2 years or more 
5%

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 5

Page 87



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Comment

Green Green

0.6% 5.0% 5.0%

Top Quartile NI 65

Not LAA
SN = 11.7 Target 

Comment

Green Green

12.4% 5.0% 5.0%

Top Quartile NI 66

Not LAA
SN = 91 Target 

Comment

Green Green

97.0% 99.0% 99.0%

Top Quartile NI 67 Not LAA
SN = 99.8 Target 

Comment

Green Green

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Top Quartile NI 68 Not LAA
SN = 58.9 Target 

Comment

Amber Amber

54.9% 59.0% 59.0%

Top Quartile NI 69 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 70

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 71 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Good performance is low

Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a second or 

subsequent time 

10%

Good performance is low

Looked after children cases which were reviewed within required timescales 

97%

Good performance is high

Child protection cases which were reviewed within required timescales 
100%

Good performance is high

Referrals to children’s social care going on to initial assessment 
58%

Government guidance unclear whether good perfomance is typified by higher or lower 

numbers.  

Children who have experienced bullying 

New indicator.  Annual collection via TellUs survey.  No baseline available to calculate 

target

Hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries to children 

and young people 

New indicator no baseline available

Children who have run away from home/care overnight 

Further guidance to be issued by Government.  Indicator to be introduced 2009/10

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 6

Page 88



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Top Quartile NI 72

Not LAA
49.2 Target 

Comment

41.2%

Top Quartile NI 73 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

67.0%

Top Quartile NI 74 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

58.0%

Top Quartile NI 75
Not LAA

54 Target 

Comment

37.4%

Top Quartile NI 76 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

25.0%

Top Quartile NI 77

Not LAA
0 Target 

Comment

3

Top Quartile NI 78

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

4

Top Quartile NI 80 Not LAA
56 Target 

Comment

Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early Years Foundation Stage with 

at least 6 in each of the scales in Personal Social and Emotional Development 

and Communication, Language and Literacy 

46.1%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 2 
70%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement at level 5 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 3 
61%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent including English 

and Maths (Threshold) 
44%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at KS2 (Floor) 
22%

Annual collection

Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 50% of pupils achieve level 5 

or above in both English and Maths at KS3 (Floor) 

2

Annual collection

Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 30% 0f pupils achieve 5 or 

more A*-C grades at GCSE and equivalent including GCSEs in English and 

Maths (Floor) 

3

Annual collection

Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 
45%

Annual collection

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 7

Page 89



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

44.0%

Top Quartile NI 81 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

14.5%

Top Quartile NI 82 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

13.6%

Top Quartile NI 83 Not LAA
73.7 Target 

Comment

59.0%

Top Quartile NI 84 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

41.7%

Top Quartile NI 85

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

153

Top Quartile NI 86

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

50.0%

Top Quartile NI 87 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

7.2%

Top Quartile NI 88 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 
13.5%

Annual collection

Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 
13.5%

Annual collection 

Achievement at level 5 or above in Science at Key Stage 3 
65%

Annual collection. DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement of 2 or more A*-C grades in Science GCSEs or equivalent 
43%

New indicator  Annual collection

Post-16 participation in physical sciences (A Level Physics, Chemistry and 

Maths) 

160

Annual collection

Secondary schools judged as having good or outstanding standards of behaviour 

70%

Annual collection

Secondary school persistent absence rate 
7%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Number of Extended Schools 
42

New indicator

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 8

Page 90



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Top Quartile NI 89 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 90 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 91 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 92

Not LAA
39.6 Target 

Comment

38.9%

Top Quartile NI 93 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

84.8%

Top Quartile NI 94 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

75.4%

Top Quartile NI 95 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

35.6%

Top Quartile NI 96 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

54.7%

Top Quartile NI 97 Not LAA
Target 

Number of schools in special measures 
0%

New indicator

Take up of 14-19 learning diplomas 

New indicator, baselines and targets not available

Participation of 17 year-olds in education or training 
86%

New indicator, annual collection

Narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20% in the Early Years 

Foundation Stage Profile and the rest 

34.5%

Annual collection. DCSF statutory indicator.  Good performance is low

Progression by 2 levels in English between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 
85.5%

Annual collection. DCSF statutory indicator.  Good performance is high

Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 
78%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Progression by 2 levels in English between Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 
38%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 
57%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Progression by 2 levels in English between Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 
59.5%

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 9

Page 91



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Comment

55.5%

Top Quartile NI 98 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

36.4%

Top Quartile NI 99 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

52.0%

Top Quartile NI 100 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

43.0%

Top Quartile NI 101

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

12.5%

Top Quartile NI 102

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

KS2 = 21, GCSE 

= 18

Top Quartile NI 103A
Not LAA

Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 103B
Not LAA

Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 104

Not LAA

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 
38.5%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Children in care reaching level 4 in English at Key Stage 2 
62%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Children in care reaching level 4 in Maths at Key Stage 2 
62%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Children in care achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or equivalent) at Key Stage 4 

(including English and Maths) 

11%

Annual collection.  DCSF statutory indicator

Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers 

achieving the expected level at Key Stages 2 and 4 

KS2 = 19, GCSE = 16

Annual collection

Special Educational Needs – statements issued within 26 weeks (excluding 

exceptions)
82%

New indicator, annual collection

Special Educational Needs – statements issued within 26 weeks (including 

exceptions)
70%

New indicator, annual collection

The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving Key Stage 2 

English and Maths threshold 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 10

Page 92



Quarterly performance review - quarter one 2008/09

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
YTD 

Progress

Target 

Comment

45.0%

Top Quartile NI 105

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

35.0%

Top Quartile NI 106

Not LAA
Target 

Comment

Top Quartile NI 107 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

62.0%

Top Quartile NI 108 Not LAA
Target 

Comment

32.0%

43%

Annual collection

The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving 5 A*-C GCSE 

inc. English and Maths 

33%

Annual collection

Young people from low income backgrounds progressing to higher education 

New indicator, baseline and targets to be provided by DIUS

Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and minority ethnic groups 
64%

New indicator, annual collection

Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and minority ethnic groups 
34%

New indicator, annual collection

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\8\4\AI00013485\scorecard0.xls Page 11

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Child Poverty Strategy and Action Plan
	child poverty Action Plan sept ANNEX

	9 Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy and Action Plan
	alcohol harm reduction strategy (2).doc APPENDIX 1
	alcohol strategy Action plan v9- FINAL (2).dAPPENDIX 2

	11 Performance Monitoring: Local Area Agreement and National Indicator Set -Quarter 1 Report (April-June 2008)
	scorecard


